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CHARACTERISTICS OF GEM OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED
(THE “STOCK EXCHANGE")

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate small and mid-sized companies to which
a higher investment risk may be attached than other companies listed on the Stock Exchange. Prospective
investors should be aware of the potential risks of investing in such companies and should make the decision
to invest only after due and careful consideration.

Given that the companies listed on GEM are generally small and mid-sized companies, there is a risk that
securities traded on GEM may be more susceptible to high market volatility than securities traded on the
Main Board and no assurance is given that there will be a liquid market in the securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited take no
responsibility for the contents of this annual report, make no representation as to its accuracy or
completeness and expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising from or in
reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of this annual report.

This annual report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of Sino Splendid Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) collectively and individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars given in compliance
with the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on GEM of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “GEM Listing Rules”) for the purpose of giving information with regard to the Company. The Directors,
having made all reasonable enquiries, confirm that to the best of their knowledge and belief the information
contained in this annual report is accurate and complete in all material respects and not misleading or
deceptive, and there are no other matters the omission of which would make any statement herein or this
annual report misleading.
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

LR

FINANCIAL AND OPERATING RESULTS

HIGHLIGHTS

The following table sets forth certain financial information of the
Company and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) as of

the date for the years indicated:

MBEREEXRERE

TRHEINARBREME R

Al (A

SEDRARFENE THHER:

Operating results (HK$’000) REXE(THER)
2019 2018
—E-AEF —ZE-NEF
Revenue X 107,365 94,517
Proft/(loss) for the year FRHF, (EE) (2,665) (28,625)
Financial position (HK$’000) AR (F#ET)
2019 2018
—E-hF —E-N\F
Equity attributable to owners of EN/NCIESE DN F
the Company 173,726 175,778
Total assets BEE 237,474 223,070
Net assets FEE 175,755 177,807
Financial statistics B BB
2019 2018
—E-AEF —EF-N\F
Current ratio’ VLIl 3.11 3.72
Total debts to total assets ratio? 485 15 T LY 4B 8 B b R2 0.26 0.20
Return on total assets (%)’ 484 7= [0 ¥R (%)° (1.12%) (12.83)
Return on sales (%) $HE | | E (%) (2.48%) (30.29)
KEY FINANCIAL DATA FEHKER
2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
ZE-hE —E-)N\F ZE—+F —ZT—RF —FT—1F
HK cents HK cents HK cents HK cents HK cents
AL BN BN JENL JEN
(Loss)/earnings per share &% (E#E)
— basic’ %%J BN (0.69) (7.42) (46.62) 35.83 3.49
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HKS$
E T BT BT BT BT
Net assets value BREEFES
per share® 0.46 0.46 0.55 1.16 0.81

° Sino Splendid Holdings Limited
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

Notes:

Current ratio is calculated by dividing current assets by current
liabilities.

Total debts to total assets ratio is calculated by dividing the total
indebtedness by total assets.

Return on total assets is calculated by dividing the profit for the
year by total assets.

Return on sales is calculated by dividing the profit for the year by
revenue.

Earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit attributable
to owners of the Company for the year by weighted average
number of ordinary shares in issue during the year.

Net assets value per share is calculated by dividing the net assets
by weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue during the
year. Net assets represent total assets less total liabilities.
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DIRECTOR'S STATEMENT
EERES

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors of the
Company, | hereby present the Group’s results for 2019 to our
shareholders.

In 2019, the travel media business remained stable in its results.
The Group will continue to concentrate on effective cost
measures while placing more focus on those special projects
along with the events organizing which contributed positively to
the value of the Group.

The financial magazine business kept on contributing revenue
to the Group in 2019. The Group will continue to monitor the
business environment in this market and strive to achieve better
results in the coming years.

During the year, the performance of the securities investment
was improved even facing the volatile stock market in 2019. The
Board will continue to monitor the selection of securities with
concrete growth potential.

The money lending business was stable in 2019 and the Group
expects this segment will bring positive value to the Group in
the future.

Looking ahead, the outbreak of Coronavirus disease will
probably affect the performance of 2020. Profitability of the first
half year will likely be reduced. The Group believe year 2020
will be a year of uncertainty in the broader environment even
though the trade war between USA and China is alleviated.
Facing the ever-changing environment, moderate growth in the
market demand, intensifying competition, and slowdown in
offline trade, the Group will modify its strategies and adhere to
its business objectives to tackle the challenges ahead.

Finally, on behalf of the Board, | would like to extend sincere
gratitude to all shareholders, customers, suppliers and business
partners for their continuing support, and also to members of
the Board, the management, and employees who have been
dedicating to the development of the Group, for their invaluable
contributions.

Mr. Chow Chi Wa
Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 31 March 2020

° Sino Splendid Holdings Limited
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

RESULTS

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group are
principally engaged in (i) travel media operations with provision
of advertising services through the internet and travel magazines,
event organizing services and magazine publication (“Travel
Media Business”); (ii) provision of contents and advertising
services in a well-known financial magazine distributed in
The People’s Republic of China (“PRC”) (“Financial Magazine
Business”); (iii) investment in securities (“Securities Investment”);
and (iv) money lending (“Money Lending Business”).

The Group’s total revenue increased by HK$12.9 million or
13.6%, from HK$94.5 million last year to HK$107.4 million for
the year ended 31 December 2019 primarily due to the revenue
increase from Travel Media Business.

Gross profit of the Group was HK$50.1 million for the year
ended 31 December 2019, representing an increase of HK$5.5
million or 12.3% as compared with HK$44.6 million in 2018.
Gross profit margin for the year reached approximately 46.7%
(2018: 47.2%), representing a decrease of 0.5% over the last
year.

The Group recorded other income, gains and losses in the net
gain amount of HK$16.6 million during the year, compared with
HK$15.3 million net loss in the corresponding period of 2018,
which was mainly due to decrease in loss on held-for-trading
investments in 2019.

The selling and distribution costs decreased by HK$2.6 million
to HK$8.4 million during the year (2018: HK$11.0 million),
representing a decrease of 23.6% against the year of 2018.
The administrative expenses remained stable as compared with
last year of at approximately HK$46.0 million (2018: HK$46.0
million).

As a result, the loss attributable to owners of the Company
was HK$2.7 million for the year ended 31 December 2019 as
compared with a loss of HK$28.6 million in 2018 which was
mainly due to the increase in tax provision in 2019.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEENWR TN

BUSINESS REVIEW

Travel Media Business

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the Travel Media
Business recorded a revenue of HK$76.8 million, increased
by 8.0% or HK$5.7 million as compared with that of HK$71.1
million in 2018. This amount represented 71.5% of the Group’s
total revenue for the year under review.

The business recorded a segment profit of HK$10.7 million this
year, representing an increase of HK$1.5 million or 16.3% as
compared with that of HK$9.2 million in last year.

Industry Review

With organisations continuing to adopt and embrace technology
and digital channels, online travel transaction grew nearly
twice as fast as the overall market. This trend has prompted the
forecast of online gross travel bookings to rise from the actual
$642 billion in 2018 to $838 billion by 2021, in view of the
rapid rise in mobile transactions. Asia-Pacific as with many travel
markets worldwide is experiencing total travel market growth
outpace overall economic gains, with the exception of a couple
of countries. In short, Asia-Pacific travel markets are expanding
faster than GDP on a local currency basis.

While worldwide digital ad spending is predicted to reach over
$375 billion by 2021, TTG has experienced persistent downward
trend in terms of ROP bookings for traditional print advertising.
TTG is not alone as this trend is affecting all traditional print
media companies worldwide.

Resulted Impact on TTG Business and Performance in 2019

e A&P spend remained soft and under pressure by a decrease
in overall run-of-page (ROP) print advertising revenue.

e Digital online advertising continues to attract more interest
from our advertisers, enabling this revenue stream to hold
its own as opposed to print advertising.

e Contribution from Special Projects and Events has helped
with TTG’s top and bottom line profits for the year. Cost
management also play a significant part for this year’s
positive performance.

e Sino Splendid Holdings Limited
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

TTG was able to do well for the year with profit before tax up by
year on year. This was made possible through cost management
as well as the ability for TTG to introduce and offer integrated
solutions and creative options to our clients.

TTG Events Group
TTG Events group organised/managed 9 trade events and was
involved in the following roadshows/events in 2019:

e ATF Vietnam
ATF Vietnam
e IT&CM China
TEBERERRKEEES
e CTW China
PEBERERAS
e [T&CM Asia
IT&CM Asia
e CTW Asia-Pacific
CTW Asia-Pacific
e Cambodia Travel Mart
Cambodia Travel Mart
e International Feng Shui Convention
International Feng Shui Convention
e SG Tourism Leaders Engagement Series
SG Tourism Leaders Engagement Series
e Osaka MICE Showcase
Osaka MICE Showcase

HESRH B R AR

BEENWR T
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Jan 2019, Ha Long Bay Vietnam
—E-NF-R BB NEES
Mar 2019, Shanghai, China
ZE-NF=RA FELE
Mar 2019, Shanghai, China
—E-NF=A HELE
Sep 2019, Bangkok, Thailand
—NERA FESA
Sep 2019, Bangkok, Thailand
—E-NAFNAR HEER
Oct 2019, Phnom Penh, Cambodia
—NE+AHA REEDE
Nov 2019, Singapore
—E-NF+— R #HE
Nov 2019, Singapore
—NF+— A FE
Dec 2019, Osaka, Japan
E—NEFE+ZA BEKRKR
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEENWR TN

TTG Publishing Group

Content Lab (Special Projects)

Besides the regular print and online publications/channels and
numerous supplements such as custom reports, sponsored posts,
advertorial etc, Publishing Group completed the following major
projects in 2019 which has helped to drive revenue for the

group:

e ATF 2019 Show Daily
ATFZ_Z-NFREAR
e ITB Berlin 2019 Show Daily
ITB Berlin =T — N FRERA K
e IT&CM and CTW China 2019 Show Daily
IT&CM KR CTW China—Z—hFREAR
e ILTM Supplement
ILTM Supplement
e PATA Travel Mart 2019 Show Daily
PATA Travel Mart —Z — N F R E H &
e TTGmice Planner 2019
TTGmice $§#2019
e IT&CM Asia and CTW 2019 Show Daily
IT&CM Asia RCTW ZZ2— N ERE B R
e ITB Asia Daily
ITB Asia Daily
e TTG Asia Luxury Supplement
TTG Asia Luxury Supplement
e TTG Travel Awards 2019 Supplement
TIGIRERE =T — NFIET
e CITM Daily
CITM Daily
e Asian Tourism Expert Guide 2019/2020
SEM 32 F K 5 #2019/2020

Looking Ahead

TTG is one of the very few traditional media companies that
remains above water and continues to be profitable in this
day and age. While the group continues to maximise profits
year after year with its current portfolio, there is a need to be
mindful of market trend and pressure that media companies
worldwide are facing due to the evolution of IT and technology.
The migration from print advertising to digital and social media
promotions by advertisers is inevitable and to remain as a viable
business, TTG needs to make adjustments and re-look at its
business strategies.

With the above awareness in mind, TTG has embarked on

investing time, effort and money in organic growth for its Global
Commerce Group to expedite the B2B2C ecommerce business.

@ Sino Splendid Holdings Limited
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Financial Magazine Business

Revenue from this business was HK$27.5 million, which
contributed 25.6% of the Group’s total revenue for the year
under review. Segmental loss of this business during the year
amounted to HK$2.5 million.

Securities Investment

As at 31 December 2019, total market value for the
held-for-trading investments of the Group was approximately
HK$5.2 million and recorded fair value loss of approximately
HK$1.8 million.

Money Lending Business
Revenue from this business was HK$3.1T million, which
accounted for 2.9% of the Group's total revenue for the year.

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS

No material acquisitions and disposals of subsidiaries, associates
and joint ventures in the course of the year.

PROSPECT

The outbreak of Coronavirus disease will probably affect the
performance of 2020. Profitability of the first half year will likely
be reduced. The outlook for 2020 is full of uncertainties amid
the trade war between USA and China. The economic growth
globally will be lower than that of 2019. This, coupled with
the rising protectionist sentiments, will further complicate the
situation and render the global economic outlook volatile.

In response, the Group will continue to sharpen its strategies
and monitor the external environment and internal resources
carefully to meet the Group’s business development.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Liquidity and financial resources

The Group generally financed its operations with its internally
generated cash flows. The Group’s total equity was HK$175.8
million as at 31 December 2019, representing a decrease of
HK$2.0 million as compared with that of HK$177.8 million as at
31 December 2018. Total assets amounted to HK$237.5 million
as at 31 December 2019 (2018: HK$223.1 million), of which
HK$106.1 million (2018: HK$100.3 million) was bank balances
and cash, HK$46.4 million (2018: HK$46.0 million) was equity
investments at fair value through profit or loss, HK$5.2 million
(2018: HK$7.0 million) was held-for-trading investments.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEENWR TN

Capital structure

As of 31 December 2019, the Group’s consolidated net assets
was HK$175.8 million, representing an increase of HK$2.0
million as compared with that of HK$177.8 million in 2018.

As at 31 December 2019, the Company has 385,820,923 shares
of HK$0.01 each in issue.

For the Placing of 64,300,000 Company’s shares that was
completed on 13 December 2017, please refer to the Company’s
announcements dated 22 November 2017, 24 November
2017 and 13 December 2017, respectively for details. As at
31 December 2019, the Group had utilized approximately
HK$5.0 million for salaries expenses, including directors’
emoluments and other staff costs, approximately HK$1.5 million
for rental expenses for Hong Kong premises and approximately
HK$5 million for legal and professional fee and other
administrative expenses.

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had unutilized net proceeds
of approximately HK$1.01 million which was intended to be
used in the year ending 31 December 2020 for other possible
investment.

Charges on the Group’s assets

There was no charges on the Group's assets as at 31 December
2019 and 2018.

Debt structure

The Group was no borrowings for financial institutions as at
31 December 2019 and 2018. The Group's total bank balances
and cash amounted to HK$106.1 million as at 31 December
2019, which increased by HK$5.8 million as compared with that
of HK$100.3 million as at 31 December 2018.

The gearing ratio (net debts divided by shareholders’ equity) was
zero as at 31 December 2019 and 2018.

Exposure to fluctuations in exchange rates and any
related hedges

The majority of the Group’s assets and liabilities and business
transactions were denominated in Singapore dollars and Hong
Kong dollars. During the years ended 31 December 2019 and
2018, the Group had not entered into any hedging arrangements.
However, the management will continue to monitor closely its
foreign currency exposure and requirements and to arrange for
hedging facilities when necessary.

Q Sino Splendid Holdings Limited

BERERE

i —hWE+-_A=+—8 Kx&£EZ
e FEER75800,0008 T BT
— J\5 2177,800,0005% 7T 1 /12,000,000
EIT °

RZEBE—NEFE+_A=+—H ARQRFE
%£17385,820,923 F R EE0.01E T 2
R 1D

FHER-_ZE—+tF+-A+=ZHEKZ
64,300,000k N R RIRHDERE 2515 5
@@ﬁ@ﬂﬁ%ﬁ%%_i +F+—A
ity e = —+F+— ﬂ—+m5&
—F— t¢+ B+=BzR & -R=

—h&+=-A=+—8" $%IEE%m
5,000,000 TR F R (BRESH
Bl fe H At B T X A8 ) « 491,500,0005% 7T A3
REBEWMENEEH X X 45,000,000
TTARZEZERBEERREMITHRAX -

RZE-—NFE+_A=+—8 F~5EE
PREAEE T -_2F+_A=+—H
iﬁrﬁ%m%%ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁnmamo
BITRAREMAT R E

FEENEEERR
R_E-NFER-_T—-N\F+_A=+—
B AEBEWEEMEEERR-

BEERE
RZE—NFRE-—N\F+_A=+—
H AEBEHSERESRHEBENER R
TE-NF+ZA=1+—8 KXEBEIET
Eer IR & 4858 5106,100,00008 70 8 —
Z—N\F+=HF=+—H2100,300,000
7 JT 18 HN5,800,0005% T °

KRB NFER_E—N\F+_A=1+—
H EEBEL R (EKFHEKR UK ERE
gy =1

ERRBARREMNEREFED

REBALDEERBBAREBERS TS
M T RETAE- RBEE-F—N
E&:%-A¢+:HE+—E¢¢§’
$$liﬁﬂjEﬁﬁF§ﬁ Z I

ﬁﬁ%%ﬁ* BE SR H HNES B R &ﬁx
WHREFERTHEE PG -
ANNUAL REPORT 2019



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Contingent liabilities

The Group had no material contingent liability as at
31 December 2019 and 2018.

Employee information

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had 67 (2018: 74) full time
employees, of which 10 (2018: 12) were based in Hong Kong,
13 (2018: 13) in China, 43 (2018: 48) in Singapore, and 1 (2018:
1) in Malaysia. The Group’s employees are remunerated largely
based on their performance and experience, alongside with
the current industry practices. The Group has introduced share
option scheme to recognize the contributions of the employees
to the growth of the Group. The scheme has been or will be
amended from time to time to take into account changes in
market conditions and the GEM Listing Rules. Remuneration
packages of employees include salaries, insurance, medical
cover, mandatory provident fund, discretionary bonuses and
share option (if any).
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EENSHREEERE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR, CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER, COMPANY SECRETARY & COMPLIANCE
OFFICER

Chow Chi Wa

Mr. Chow, aged 51, was appointed as an Executive Director
in March 2013; as Company Secretary in August 2013 and as
Chief Executive Officer in November 2013 of the Company. He
holds a master degree in Corporate Governance from the Open
University of Hong Kong, a master degree in Corporate Finance
and a master degree in Finance (Investment Management)
from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University. He has been a
Non-executive Director of Cybernaut International Holdings
Limited (Stock code: 1020) since November 2013. Mr. Chow
is a certified public accountant of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants and a fellow member of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants. He is an
associate of the Hong Kong Institute of Company Secretaries
and the Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators. He
possesses extensive experience in finance and accounting.

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Wang Tao

Mr. Wang, aged 62, was graduated from the Hebei University
with a bachelor’s degree of Engineering in 1982. He has
accumulated more than 20 years of experience in investment
and construction management. Mr. Wang was the deputy general
managers of a private real estate development company located
in Beijing since 2004. Mr. Wang was appointed as an Executive
Director of the Company on 29 September 2015.

Yang Xingan

Mr. Yang, aged 50, was appointed as an Executive Director of
the Company in January 2015. He graduated from the Wuhan
University of Science and Technology, majoring in industrial
and civil architecture. He is a registered constructor in the
People’s Republic of China, a senior engineer and a member
of the Architectural Society of China. Mr. Yang has over 20
years of management experience in construction and real estate
development. He joined Hubei State-owned Huanggai Hu
Property Development Company (31L& Bl & & &2 M2 F &
F# T2/2 7)) as a technician in July 1993 and was holding the
position as a general manager by the time he left in February
2001. Between March 2001 and July 2005, Mr. Yang was the
project manager of Archibal Decoration Co., Ltd. (FII 71 F 5
ek st TR AR A F]) . From August 2005 to February 2009, he
joined Shenzhen Yingfeng Decoration Engineering Co., Limited
(FRYImEBEMTIEABRAAF])as a partner. Since March
2009, Mr. Yang has been the Legal Representative and Chairman
of Jiangsu Anxin Digital Property Co., Limited (T &4 & /5 &H T
EXABRAA).
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
EENGREEEREE

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Yang Shuyan

Ms. Yang, aged 40, is a certified public accountant in the
People’s Republic of China. She graduated from the South
China University of Technology with a dual bachelor’s degree
in E-commerce and Technical English. She has over ten years of
working experience in auditing and finance. She had worked in
KPMG. She has served as the financial controller of a project
investment company in Shenzhen since October 2015. Ms. Yang
was appointed as an Independent Non-Executive Director and
chairlady of each of the Audit Committee, the Remuneration
Committee and the Nomination Committee on 29 May 2015.

Wang Qingling

Ms. Wang, aged 35, she has over 10 years of experience in
administration and management and has rich knowledge in
merchandising. Ms. Wang was appointed as Independent
Non-Executive Director and a member of each of the Audit
Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee on 28 December 2018.

Lee Yim Wah

Ms. Lee, aged 47, she has over 20 years of experience in the
trading industry and has rich knowledge in sales and marketing.
Ms. Lee was appointed as Independent Non-Executive Director
and a member of each of the Audit Committee, the Remuneration
Committee and the Nomination Committee on 31 March 2016.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Darren Ng Hung Meng

Mr. Ng, aged 64, is the Managing Director of TTG Asia Media
Pte Ltd. He is a veteran in the travel and tourism industry
and has a wealth of experience of more than 30 years in the
business. Having joined the company (formerly known as Asian
Business Press and Miller Freeman Pte Ltd) since 1984, he
is credited with successfully growing TTG regionally. Under
Darren’s leadership, TTG achieved consistent organic growth,
establishing profitable portfolios in event management, tourism
and travel trade publishing. His accomplishments also include
expanding TTG’s geographic presence across Asia.

Mr. Ng has also been at the helm of multitude of incumbent
committees and associations in the travel and tourism industry
as council and advisory member. He is the current Chairman
of PATA Singapore Chapter (since 2008) and is presently an
Industry Council Member of Pacific Asia Travel Association, the
Appointed Conference Ambassador to Shanghai City (from 2009
to 2014) and previously a Member of the Asia Pacific Advisory
Council to Meeting Professionals International (MPI). He also
served as the President of Skal International Singapore from
20071 to 2003.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEEHE

The Directors are pleased to present their report together with
the audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for
the year ended 31 December 2019.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
Group is principally engaged in travel media operations with
provision of advertising services through the internet and travel
magazines, event organizing services and magazine publication;
provision of contents and advertising services in a well-known
financial magazine distributed in the PRC; investment in
securities and money lending. Details of the principal activities
of the principal subsidiaries are set out in note 19 to the
consolidated financial statements.

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the year by operating
segment is set out in note 6 to the consolidated financial
statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The business review of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2019 is set out in “Director’s Statement” and
“Management Discussion and Analysis” of this annual report.

Environmental Policies

The Group is committed to reducing its carbon footprint and
consumption of natural resources in all possible aspects of
business operations. Our environmental strategy is to achieve a
balance between the quality and efficiency of our services and
the minimization of greenhouse gas emissions and environmental
degradation. Accordingly, the Group has taken a proactive
approach to effect internal and external communications by
means of telephone, emails and conferences or such other
communication means which are efficient yet environmentally
friendly. Also, the Group are able to minimize physical travelling
and printing.

Compliance with Relevant Laws and Regulations

The Group recognises the importance of compliance with legal
and regulatory requirements and the risk of non-compliance
with such requirements. The Company is not aware of any non-
compliance in any material respect with the relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact on the business and
operation of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2019.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

Relationship with Employees

The employees of the Group are one of the most important assets
and the stakeholders of the Group and their contribution and
support are of values at all times. The Group regularly reviews
compensation and benefit policies accordingly to industry
benchmark as well as the individual performance of employees.
Other fringe benefits, mandatory provident fund and share
options (if any) are provided to retain loyal employees aiming at
forming a professional staff and management team that can bring
the Group to a higher level of success.

Relationships with Customers and Suppliers

The Directors believe that maintaining a good relationship with
customers is one of the critical reasons for the Group’s success.
Our business model is to maintain and build up on our strong
relationship with our client base. Our mission is to provide the
finest services to our customers and the Group is constantly
looking ways to improve customer relation through enhanced
services. Also, the Group has maintained good relationship with
the suppliers to ensure their continued support to the Group in
the foreseeable future.

RESULTS AND DIVIDEND

The results of the Group for the year are set out in “Consolidated
Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income” of
this annual report.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final dividend
for the year ended 31 December 2019.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out in “Financial
Summary” of this annual report.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements during the year in the property, plant
and equipment of the Group are set out in note 15 to the
consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTIONS

Details of movements during the year in the share capital of the
Company are set out in note 28 to the consolidated financial
statements. Use of proceeds from the placing of 64,300,000
Company’s shares in 2017, are set out in “FINANCIAL REVIEW”
section under “Management Discussion and Analysis” of this
annual report.

Details of movements during the year in the share options are
set out in note 31 to the consolidated financial statements and
“SHARE OPTION SCHEME” section contained in this directors’
report.
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DIRECTORS’” REPORT
EEEHE

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s by-law, or the laws of the Cayman Islands, which
would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata
basis to existing shareholders.

RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company
during the year are set out in “Consolidated Statement of
Changes in Equity” and in note 28 to the consolidated financial
statements respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2019, the distributable reserves of the
Company amounted to HK$62,245,000 (2018: HK$49,317,000).

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has adopted a dividend policy pursuant to which
the Company may declare and distribute dividends to the
shareholders of the Company.

The recommendation of the payment of any dividend is subject
to the absolute discretion of the Board, and any declaration
of final dividend will be subject to the approval of the
shareholders. In proposing any dividend payout, the Board
shall also take into account, inter alia, the Group’s operations,
earnings, financial condition, cash requirements and availability,
capital expenditure and future development requirements and
other factors it may deem relevant at such time. Any payment of
the dividend by the Company is also subject to any restrictions
under the articles of association of the Company and all
applicable laws and regulations.

The dividend policy will be reviewed from time to time and
there is no assurance that a dividend will be proposed or
declared in any specific periods.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year ended 31 December 2019, neither the Company
nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold or redeemed any
of the Company’s listed securities.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save as disclosed under the section headed “SHARE OPTION
SCHEME” in this directors’ report and note 31 to the
consolidated financial statements, no equity-linked agreements
were entered into by the Company for the year ended
31 December 2019 or subsisted at the end of the year.
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DONATIONS

Charitable and other donations made by the Group during the
year amounted to approximately HK$2,000 (2018: HK$3,000).

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 December 2019, sales attributable to the
Group’s largest customer accounted for 13% of the Group’s
total sales and aggregate sales attributable to the five largest
customers of the Group accounted for 49% of the Group's total
sales.

For the year ended 31 December 2019, purchases attributable to
the Group’s largest supplier accounted for 14% of the Group’s
total purchases and aggregate purchases attributable to the five
largest suppliers of the Group accounted for 28% (i.e. less than
30%) of the Group’s total purchases.

To the knowledge of the Directors, none of the Directors, nor
their close associates, nor any shareholder owning more than 5%
of the Company’s issued share capital had any interests in any of
the five largest customers or suppliers.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year, except for those disclosed in note 35 to the
consolidated financial statements, the Group had no transactions
with its related parties.

The Directors conducted review of the related party transactions
of the Group during the year and were not aware of any
transactions requiring disclosure of connected transactions or
continuing connected transactions in accordance with the GEM
Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report were:

Executive Directors

Chow Chi Wa (Chief Executive Officer)
Yang Xingan

Wang Tao

Independent Non-executive Directors
Yang Shuyan

Wang Qingling

Lee Yim Wah
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In accordance with article 85 of the articles of association of the
Company (the “Articles”), Mr. Yang Xingan and Ms. Yang Shuyan
shall retire at the forthcoming annual general meeting and, being
eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

All non-executive Directors are appointed for a term of 2 years.

EMOLUMENTS OF THE DIRECTORS AND THE
FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

Details of emoluments of the Directors and the five highest paid
individuals of the Group are set out in notes 11 and 12 to the
consolidated financial statements respectively.

The Directors’ fees are subject to shareholders’ approval
at general meetings. Other emoluments are reviewed and
recommended by the remuneration committee of the Company
with reference to Directors’ duties, responsibilities, performance
and the results of the Group.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Biographical details of Directors and senior management
are set out in “Biographical Details of Directors and Senior
Management” of this annual report.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received from each of the independent
non-executive Directors (the “INED(s)”) an annual confirmation
of their independence pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing
Rules. The Company considers all the INEDs are independent.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract which
is not determinable by the Company or any of its subsidiaries
within one year without payment of compensation other than
statutory compensation.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

Pursuant to the Company’s bye-law and subject to the relevant
provisions therein, the Directors, company secretary and other
officers shall be indemnified and secured harmless out of the
assets and profits of the Company from and against all actions,
costs, charges, losses, damages and expenses which they may
incur by execution of their duties in their respective offices or
otherwise in relation thereto.

COMPETING INTERESTS

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Board is not
aware of any business or interest of each director and the
respective close associates (as defined under the GEM Listing
Rules) of each that competes or may compete with the business
of the Group and any other conflicts of interest which any such
person has or may have with the Group.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

No transaction, arrangement or contract of significance in which
a Director or a connected entity of that Director had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisting during or at the
end of the year.

ARRANGEMENTS FOR DIRECTORS TO ACQUIRE
SHARES

At no time during the year was the Company or any of its
subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors
to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in the
Company or any other body corporate.

DIRECTORS” AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

OF THE COMPANY AND ASSOCIATED
CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2019, none of the Directors nor chief
executive of the Company had any interests or short positions in
shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any
of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFQO”)) as recorded in
the register required to be kept under section 352 of the SFO or
as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the required standard of dealings by Directors of
the Company as set out in rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing
Rules.
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INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF
SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS IN THE SHARES
AND UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 December 2019, those persons (other than Directors
and chief executive of the Company) who had interests and
short positions in shares or underlying shares of the Company
as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
under section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

Long position in ordinary shares of the Company

Name Number of shares
HH BB B EE
Chen Ying Zhen (Note 1) 90,695,125
PR#EEEE (HFET)

QIYI HOLDINGS LIMITED (Note 1) 90,695,125

RaERERAR (HZ1)

Note 1:  Mr. Chen Ying Zhen held 80% interest in and a director of

QIYI HOLDINGS LIMITED.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2019, no person
(other than Directors and chief executive of the Company) had
notified the Company any interests or short positions in shares
or underlying shares of the Company which was recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company under section 336
of the SFO.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company adopted a share option scheme (the “2013 Share
Option Scheme”) on 31 December 2013, which was approved
by the shareholders at the extraordinary general meeting of
the Company held on the same date. The 2013 Share Option
Scheme will expire on 31 December 2023.

The purpose of the 2013 Share Option Scheme is to enable
the Group to grant share options to eligible participants as
incentives or rewards for their contribution to the growth of the
Group and to provide the Group with a more flexible means to
reward, remunerate, compensate and/or provide benefits to the
eligible participants.

According to the 2013 Share Option Scheme, the Board may
grant share options to eligible participants including employees,
directors of the Company and its subsidiaries, consultant, adviser,
agent, contractor, customer and supplier of any member of the
Group and the Board has sole discretion to consider eligibility for
the 2013 Share Option Scheme on the basis of their contribution
to the development and growth of the Group.

e Sino Splendid Holdings Limited
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The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon
the exercise of all share options to be granted under the 2013
Share Option Scheme and any other share option scheme(s) of
the Company, is 38,582,092 shares which represents 10% of the
issued shares of the Company as at the date of this annual report,
must not exceed 10% of the issued share capital of the Company
on the date of approval and adoption of the 2013 Share Option
Scheme provided that the Company may at any time seek
approval from shareholders to refresh the limit to 10% of the
shares in issue as at the date of approval by the shareholders
in general meeting where such limit is refreshed. Share options
previously granted under any share option schemes of the
Company (including those outstanding, cancelled, lapsed in
accordance with such schemes or exercised) will not be counted
for the purpose of calculating the limit as refreshed.

The total number of shares issued and may fall to be issued
upon exercise of the share options granted under the 2013
Share Option Scheme and any other share option scheme(s) of
the Company (including exercised, cancelled and outstanding
options) to each eligible participant in any 12-month period up
to and including the date of grant shall not exceed 1% of the
shares in issue as at the date of grant unless such grant has been
duly approved by an ordinary resolution of the shareholders in
general meeting at which the relevant eligible participant and
his associates were abstained from voting. Share options granted
to substantial shareholders or INEDs or any of their respective
associates in any 12-month period in excess of 0.1% of the
Company’s issued share capital on the date of grant and with a
value in excess of HK$5 million must be approved in advance
by the shareholders.

Options granted must be taken up within 7 days from the date
of the offer upon payment of a nominal consideration of HK$1
in total by the grantee. The exercise period of the share options
granted is determinable by the Board. There is no general
requirement on the minimum period for which option must be
held before it can be exercised. All options must be exercised
within 10 years from the date of grant.

The exercise price is determined by the Board and will not be
less than the higher of (i) the closing price of the Company’s
shares on the date of grant, (ii) the average closing price of
the Company’s shares for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of grant; and (iii) the nominal value of the
Company’s shares.
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No share option has been granted under the 2013 Share Option
Scheme as at 31 December 2019.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set
up by the remuneration committee on the basis of their merit,
qualifications and competence.

The emoluments of the Directors are reviewed and
recommended by the remuneration committee, having regard
to the Company’s operating results, individual performance and
comparable market statistics.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme as an
incentive to Directors and eligible employees, details of the
scheme is set out in “SHARE OPTION SCHEME" section of this
directors’ report.

PENSION SCHEME

Details of the pension scheme of the Group and the employer’s
pension costs charged to the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income for the year are set out
in notes 34 and 10 to the consolidated financial statements,
respectively.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company
were entered into or existed during the financial year.

COMPANY SECRETARY AND COMPLIANCE
OFFICER

Details of company secretary and compliance officer of the
Company is set out in “Biographical Details of Directors and
Senior Management” of this annual report.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICE

Details of the Company’s corporate governance practices are set
out in “Corporate Governance Report” of this annual report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has
maintained sufficient public float (i.e. at least 25% of the issued
shares were held by the public) as required by the GEM Listing
Rules during the year and up to the date of this report.

@ Sino Splendid Holdings Limited
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee of the Company has reviewed the
accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group
and the consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2019.

INTERESTS OF COMPLIANCE ADVISER

Pursuant to the directions of the GEM Listing Committee of
the Stock Exchange, the Company has appointed Grand Moore
Capital Limited as the independent compliance adviser (the
“Compliance Adviser”) on an on-going basis for consultation on
compliance with the GEM Listing Rules for a period of two years
with effect from 30 November 2018. As at 31 December 2019,
as notified by the Compliance Adviser, save for the compliance
adviser’s agreement entered into between the Company and the
Compliance Adviser, neither the Compliance Adviser nor any
of its directors, employees or close associates (as defined under
the GEM Listing Rules) had any interests in the Group which is
required to be notified to the Company pursuant to Rule 6A.32
of the GEM Listing Rules.

AUDITOR

BDO Limited resigned as auditor of the Company on 7 January
2016.

Elite Partners CPA Limited (“Elite Partners”) was appointed as
auditor of the Company on 7 January 2016.

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2019 were audited by Elite Partners.

A resolution will be submitted to the forthcoming annual
general meeting to re-appoint Elite Partners as the auditor of the
Company.

On behalf of the Board

Sino Splendid Holdings Limited
Chow Chi Wa
Executive Director

Hong Kong, 31 March 2020
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TERERME

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board is always committed to maintaining high standard of
corporate governance. The Company throughout the year 2019
has fully complied with the applicable code provisions in the
Corporate Governance Code and Corporate Governance Report
(the “CG Code”) contained in Appendix 15 of the GEM Listing
Rules.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the required standard of dealings in
securities (the “Required Standard of Dealings”) as set out in
rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules as its own code of
conduct governing the securities transactions by the Directors.
Following a specific enquiry made by the Company, all the
Directors confirmed that they complied with or they were not
aware of any non-compliance with the Required Standard of
Dealings for the year ended 31 December 2019.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Board composition

The Board is collectively responsible for the oversight of the
management of the business affairs of the Group with the
objective of enhancing shareholders value.

For Board composition, please refer to the section “DIRECTORS”
in the “Directors’ Report” of this annual report.

Throughout the year 2019, the Company has complied with
rules 5.05(1) and (2), and 5.05A of the GEM Listing Rules.

The Company has received an annual confirmation of
independence in writing from each of the INEDs pursuant to
Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules and considers them to be
independent.

There is no relationship (including financial, business, family
or other material relationship) between members of the Board.
Biographies of Directors are set out in “Biographical Details of
Directors and Senior Management” of this annual report.

@ Sino Splendid Holdings Limited
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Board responsibilities and delegation

The overall management of the Company’s businesses is vested
in the Board, which assumes the responsibility for leadership and
control of the Company and determines the overall strategies and
decides on significant financial and operational issues. Types of
decisions reserved for the Board are those affecting the Group’s
overall strategic and financial policies, material contracts and
major investments.

The day-to-day management, administration and operation of the
Company are delegated to the management which is responsible
for the execution of the strategies and polices adopted by the
Board.

Attendance at Board and general meetings

The Board held 5 meetings during the financial year ended
31 December 2019 to consider, among other things, reviewing
and approving the quarterly, half-yearly, annual results and
payment of dividend (if any) of the Group.

The attendance record of each Director at Board and general
meetings in 2019 is set out below:

Directors
E=x
Executive Directors HITES
Chow Chi Wa A
Wang Tao =
Yang Xingan B
Independent Non-executive Directors BYFHTES
Yang Shuyan R EE
Wang Qingling ITER
Lee Yim Wah T
PEERRRERBRLT

TERERRE

ESERERRE

ARRMEFHESSEREE EF8
BEREREHARNRAARRERBE K
REZHHEBBRBLEAR - BRES
SHEHNARRBE AT EASE BB
RTBERR - BEARHANEBRENRR -

ARAMBEER THRAELERFATE
EE EEERENTEFTSRMANKE
KBER °

EZEEBRRRAEHERSR
BE_ZT-NF+A=+T—BLEUHF
B ZBFGCRITSREH UBE(EF
BR)EHMMEAREZFE FFE-
FEXERKMNBRE (WE) -

TIREEEN _ZE-NFHFEFESE

NS E Nl R
Board meeting  General meeting
attendance/ attendance/
Number of Number of
Meetings Meetings
Exgel BRAE
HERE HERE
BRNRE ERRE
5/5 11
5/5 0/1
5/5 11
5/5 11
5/5 11
5/5 11
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TERERME

Directors’ continuous training and development

Directors’ training is an ongoing process. During the year,
Directors are provided with updates on the Company’s
performance, position and prospects regularly to enable the
Board as a whole and each Director to discharge their duties.
In addition, all Directors are encouraged to participate in
continuous professional development (the “CPD”) to develop
and refresh their knowledge and skills to ensure that their
contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant.

During the year, all Directors had participated in the CPD by
reading materials and/or attending training courses, seminars
or workshops organized by professional bodies on corporate
governance or updates on laws, rules and regulations relating to
the roles, functions and duties of a Director.

The individual record of each Director who received training for
the year is summarized as follows:

Directors

=

Executive Directors HITES

Chow Chi Wa A S E

Wang Tao =

Yang Xingan BER
Independent Non-executive Directors ~ BYFHTES
Yang Shuyan 15 ER

Wang Qingling ITE®

Lee Yim Wah T

@ Sino Splendid Holdings Limited
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

The Chief Executive Officer of the Company is Mr. Chow Chi
Wa. The roles of the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer
are segregated. The primary role of the Chairman is to provide
leadership for the Board and to ensure that it works effectively
in discharging its responsibilities. The Chief Executive Officer
is responsible for the day-to-day management of the Group’s
business.

The Board’s chairlady, Ms. Xu Yun, resigned on 21 December
2015. The Group is still seeking replacement for the position.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

All non-executive Directors are appointed for a term of 2 years
and are subject to rotational retirement and re-election in
accordance with the articles of association of the Company.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three committees to discharge the
Board functions. The respective roles, responsibilities and
activities of each of the Board committees are set out below:

Audit Committee

The primary duties of the audit committee are to ensure (i) the
reliability and integrity of the financial reporting of the Group;
(i) that effective risk management and internal control systems
are functioning within the Group; and (iii) an appropriate
relationship is maintained with the external auditor. The terms of
reference of the audit committee are available on the Company’s
website.

The committee composition and the attendance record of each
of the committee members during the year is as follows:

Directors

Es

Independent Non-executive Directors BYFHITES

Yang Shuyan (committee chairlady) BRE(ZE2F/E)

Wang Qingling TE®R

Lee Yim Wah T
PEERRRERBRLT

TERERRE

IRREEITRAR
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TERERME

During the year, the audit committee reviewed the remuneration
and terms of engagement of the external auditor, reviewed the
annual results for 2018, quarterly and half-yearly results for
2019 and reviewed the risk management and internal control
systems.

Nomination Committee

The primary duties of the nomination committee are to (i)
determine the policy, procedures and criteria for the nomination
of directors, (ii) review the structure, size, composition and
diversity of the Board, (iii) identify individuals suitably qualified
to become board members, (iv) assess the independence
of INEDs, (v) make recommendations to the Board on the
appointment or re-appointment of directors and (vi) monitor
the implementation of the board diversity policy. The terms of
reference of the nomination committee are available on the
Company’s website.

The committee composition and the attendance record of each

of the committee members during the year is as follows:

Directors

E=x
BYFHTES

Independent Non-executive Directors

Yang Shuyan (committee chairlady)

Wang Qingling ITER
Lee Yim Wah &3 k=

During the year, the nomination committee reviewed the
structure, size, composition and diversity of the Board, assessed
the independence of all INEDs and reviewed the retirement of
Directors by rotation and the re-election of the retiring Directors.

@ Sino Splendid Holdings Limited
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Nomination Policy

The nomination committee will assess the candidate or
incumbent on criteria such as integrity, experience, skill and
ability to commit time and effort to carry out the duties and
responsibilities. The recommendations of the nomination
committee will then be put to the Board for decision.

Procedure for Nomination of Directors

When there is a vacancy in the Board, the nomination committee
evaluates the balance of skills, knowledge and experience of the
Board, and identifies any special requirements for the vacancy.
The nomination committee will then identify suitable candidates
and convene a nomination committee meeting to discuss and
vote on the nomination of director(s) and make recommendation
to the Board on the candidate(s) for directorship.

Criteria for Nomination of Directors

The nomination committee will consider candidates who possess
the particular skills, experience and expertise that will best
complement the Board effectiveness at that time. In considering
the overall balance of the Board’s composition, the nomination
committee will give due consideration to the board diversity
policy of the Company.

Board Diversity Policy

The Board adopted a board diversity policy setting out the
approach to achieve diversity on the Board. The Company
recognizes and embraces the benefits of diversity of Board
members. It endeavors to ensure that the Board had a balance of
skills, experience and diversity of perspectives appropriate to the
requirements of the Group’s business. All Board appointments
will be based on meritocracy, and candidates will be considered
against objective criteria, having due regard for the benefits of
diversity on the Board.

Selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity
perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
and educational background and professional experience. The
ultimate decision will be made upon the merits and contribution
that the selected candidates will bring to the Board. The
Company will also take into account factors based on its own
business model and specific needs from time to time.

The nomination committee reviewed the board diversity policy
and achievement of objectives and effectiveness of the board
diversity policy, and recommended the Board that the existing
Board was appropriately structured and no change was required.
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Remuneration Committee

The Company has adopted the model to delegate the
determination of the remuneration packages of individual
executive directors and senior management to the remuneration
committee. The committee is responsible for formulating and
recommending remuneration policy to the Board and reviewing
and making recommendations on compensation-related issues.
The terms of reference of the remuneration committee are
available on the Company’s website.

The committee composition and the attendance record of each
of the committee members during the year is as follows:

Directors

B=

Independent Non-executive Directors BIUFHITES
Yang Shuyan (committee chairlady) BRB(ZEELE)
Wang Qingling TE®R

Lee Yim Wah FU

During the year, the remuneration committee reviewed the
Group’s policy and structure for the remuneration of Directors
and senior management, assessed performance of executive
Directors, reviewed and recommended to the Board the
remuneration packages of Directors and senior management and
ensured that no Director or any of his associates is involved in
deciding his own remuneration.

Remuneration of Senior Management
The remuneration of the senior management whose particulars
are contained in “Biographical details of Directors and

Senior Management” of this annual report for the year ended

FMEES

ARRIRATERFHZBESETERHR

TEERSREEB 2FMTEZEA -
ZESARHRIRAEFTERE %ﬁ@lﬁ%’

ARk REZERES @JIZ%E S
EgvBEESERARRBAEEH-

Eﬁﬁ%Q%ERWT

Attendance/
Number of Meetings

R/ EBERY

11
1/1
1/1

FR- @I*iéﬁ*ﬁEﬂ‘ﬁﬁli%&m
i&ai@ HI R R R RRE  FHE ST
%%E’Ji‘%fﬁ EHTAEFEREREFR
EREREENFMSTERBRESHEM
AMBALHESEREEA T FHMN-

BREZEMWE

 E-T-NF T A=+ HLEFEN
PREEEZMEFBENAFRIES
BREEERE] EMo®mEHI W

31 December 2019 by band is set out below: K
Remuneration band (in HK$) Number of individual
&g E (LB TEE) A
1,500,001 to 2,000,000 1,500,001 %2,000,000 1
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Corporate Governance Functions

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate
governance duties including:

a. To develop and review the Company’s policies and practices
on corporate governance and make recommendations to the
Board;

b. To review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior
management;

c. To review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

d. To develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and
Directors; and

e. To review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code
and disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

RESPONSIBILITIES IN RESPECT OF FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for preparing the
financial statements of the Company.

The statement of the external auditor about their reporting
responsibilities on the financial statements is set out in the
“Independent Auditor’s Report” of this annual report.

During the year, the remuneration paid to the external auditor
for audit service is HK$460,000.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Chow Chi Wa, the company secretary of the Company,
has undertaken not less than 15 hours of relevant professional
training to update his skills and knowledge in 2019.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Procedures to convene an extraordinary general
meeting and put forward proposals at general meeting
Pursuant to article 59 of the Articles, any one or more
shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the requisition
not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company
carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the Company
shall at all times have the right, by written requisition to the
Board or the company secretary of the Company, to require an
extraordinary general meeting to be called by the Board for the
transaction of any business specified in such requisition; and
such meeting shall be held within 2 months after the deposit of
such requisition. If within 21 days of such deposit the Board fails
to proceed to convene such meeting the requisitionist(s) himself
(themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable
expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure
of the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the
Company.

Procedures for directing enquires to the Board
Shareholders may send their written enquiries to the Company,
for the attention of company secretary, by fax: (852) 2237 7227,
or mail to 8/F, E168, 166-168 Des Voeux Road Central, Sheung
Wan, Hong Kong.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

There was no change in the constitutional documents of the
Company during the year.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is responsible for evaluating and determining the
nature and extent of the risks it is willing to take in achieving
the Company’s strategic objectives, ensuring that the Group
establishes and maintains appropriate and effective risk
management and internal control systems and reviewing their
effectiveness. The systems are designed to manage rather than
eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and
can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against
material misstatement or loss.

The Board has conducted an annual review on the effectiveness
of the risk management and internal control systems. Review of
the Group’s internal controls covers major financial, operational
and compliance controls, as well as risk management function
of different systems.

@ Sino Splendid Holdings Limited
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No internal audit team has been set up during the year since
it is not cost effective in view of the small and simple size and
structure of the Group. However, the Board will continue to
review the need for one annually.

The Group adopted a risk management framework which
comprises the following processes:

— ldentify significant risk in the Group’s operation
environment and evaluate the impacts of those risks on the
Group’s business;

— Develop necessary measures to manage those risks; and

—  Monitor and review the effectiveness of such measures.

The Group formulated the policies and procedures of risk
management and internal control as follows:

—  The Group established an organisational structure with clear
operating and reporting procedures, lines of responsibility
and delegated authority;

—  Each operating subsidiary maintains internal controls and
procedures appropriate to its structure;

—  Relevant executive Directors and senior management have
been delegated with specific accountability for monitoring
the performance of designated business operating units; and

— A systematic review of the financial and business processes
in order to provide management the adequacy and
effectiveness of internal controls. Where weaknesses are
identified in the system of internal controls, management
will evaluate and take necessary measures to ensure that
improvements are implemented.

The Board reviewed the risk management and internal control
systems adopted by the Group for the year ended 31 December
2019 and considered that they were effective and adequate.

Dissemination of inside information

The Group has management control to ensure that any material
information which comes to the knowledge of any officers
should be promptly identified, assessed and forwarded to the
Board (if appropriate).
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BB AN RS

elite
partners

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

TO THE MEMBERS OF SINO SPLENDID HOLDINGS LIMITED

(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Sino
Splendid Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 43 to
135, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2019, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to
the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group
as at 31 December 2019, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the Code. We believe that the audit evidence
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.

@ Sino Splendid Holdings Limited
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Key Audit Matter
RREBEITER

Impairment assessment on the accounts receivable

P& W2 B K oz ik 1B Y

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had
accounts receivable with net carrying amount
of approximately HK$43,919,000. During the
year ended 31 December 2019, impairment
loss of accounts receivable of approximately
HK$5,503,000 has been charged to the
consolidated statement of profit and loss.
RZZE-NAF+ZA=+—H EBEEENENK
AR RBRE R E X /R43,919,0008 T HE T — N1
FT A=+ HLEFE BUKRFBREEBELD
5,503,000/ TR ER A B RO

We identified accounts receivable as a key audit
matter due to the measurement of expected credit
losses (“ECL”) requires significant estimates and
judgements, including determination of whether
there is significant increase in credit risk, use
of models and assumptions in determination
of probability of default and loss given default,
incorporation of forward-looking information.
BAEFERUERSEREASTE DHARTE
BEHEEER(BMEERRDFSEEAMGNR
HE ERETEERRALBRERE N EHER
MEBREETEORRMENER XAAREEE
e

HESRH B R AR
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How the matter was addressed in our audit

BMWEANWERZEE

Our procedures in relation to management’s
impairment assessment on the Group’s accounts
receivable included:

EEEN SEEENEURRZBEFGEETORER
B

e Obtaining an understanding of the Group’s credit
loss policy and methodology for impairment
assessment in relation to the application of ECL
model under HKFRS 9 including the formulation
of the model and inputs used in the ECL model.

e B SREAMREBETEMBHELEAFIRE
AEHREEBEREN (BRFERARBHEE
BEEAERZBABRE) CEEBRRRRETT
BB R b 2 J705% °

e Evaluating management’s impairment assessment
included testing, on a sample basis, the
underlying data used by management to assess the
collectability of the accounts receivable.

o FIEEEEBMRENG BREHEAATEENG
JFE Uit B K FT Mk 130 1 P PR 0 AR B U

e Assessing, validating and discussing with
management of the Group and evaluating their
assessment on the recoverability of the outstanding
debts and the adequacy of allowance made
based on the accounts receivable aging analysis,
collection subsequent to the end of the reporting
period, past collection history and trend analysis
and knowledge of the business.
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Key Audit Matter
RREEITER

Provision for taxation in relation to Tax Affairs

ERBEERRNRERE

We identified the tax provision in relation to the
Tax Affairs (as defined below) as a key audit matter
due to critical judgment was exercised by the
management to assess the tax provision.

T P9 R & 3 T8 R 1 R TR I 8 1F 1 BE K e T e O
BEBEEE(WTITXHAER)EBENHEAREGERS — R
B EER

As disclosed in note 9 to the consolidated financial
statements, a subsidiary the Group received
enquiry letters from the Hong Kong Inland Revenue
Department (the “HKIRD”) in relation to the tax
affairs of the Group’s Travel Media Business, which
is principally operated in Singapore, including but
not limited to the operating model and the related
source of income (“Tax Affairs”). The Company has
filed an objection to the HKIRD in relation to the
Tax Affairs and purchased tax reserve certificates
amounting to approximately HK$2,465,000 as at
31 December 2019.

iR M B BRRMEOMKE BEEE-RHNEBA
RAREREWGR ([EEREH])BAEK AEEF
M EEEIENTMEKLENRERBEBON
BEE BRETRREERA MAEBKRARIR ([
BEEH]) . BERRRAHRBEEEANTERBHER
TREZAERBETHRES R2T—-AF+=A
=t —HE&#HR2,465000/8 T °

Based on the legal and other professional advice
that the Company has sought, the directors of the
Company are of the opinion that sufficient provision
for taxation and tax-related expenses have been
made in the consolidated financial statements.

AR BERRARGNERREMERER . =&
RAEFEARRCEFRAVBHRR LIFL RN
BRBRGHBEERRERE-
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How the matter was addressed in our audit

BMHWEANWERZEE

Our procedures in relation to evaluating the
appropriateness of the tax provision in relation to Tax
Affairs included:
BAMEFEEREEEERNTRABENEEHMNE
FaE:

e Access the appropriateness of the basis of
provision for taxation of the Tax Affairs by
considering the recent similar tax cases in Hong
Kong, correspondences of the Group with the
HKIRD and the legal and other professional advice
sought by the Company.

e BBEERLOEZTELRAMNBUNRBKERME &
SEEFERGHOEREKMFAR BEARRFE
BREARREMEXER FEMBRBEENREA
BB EENBEEE-

e Ascertaining the adequacy of the income tax
provision based on the basis of provision for
taxation of the Tax Affairs estimated by the
Company; and

e RE BERFNUHBEEMAANHRAREBEZE
EMIEEPTST R BOERE: &

e Considering the adequacy of the disclosures in the
consolidation financial statements in respect of
the Tax Affairs.

s EZEHRAMBHmRTEMVBEEZNESLTR
5 o

ANNUAL REPORT 2019



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, but does not include the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements
or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears
to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of
this other information, we are required to report that fact. We
have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND
AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and
fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are assisted by the audit committee in discharging
their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion solely to you,
as a body, in accordance with our agreed terms of engagement,
and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents
of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when
it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of the consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s
internal control.

@ Sino Splendid Holdings Limited
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e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors” use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the audit committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the audit committee with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

BB AN RS

From the matters communicated with the audit committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is Yip Kai Yin with practising
certificate number P05131.

Elite Partners CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

10/F, 8 Observatory Road,
Tsim Sha Tsui, Kowloon
Hong Kong

31 March 2020

@ Sino Splendid Holdings Limited
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

AN

wh Eﬁ

K EAZ s R

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #ZE=F—NF+=HA=+—HIFE

2019 2018
—B-AF == )\GE
Notes HK$000 HK$000
Hat FHET FET
Revenue 3 5 107,365 94,517
Cost of sales $HE KA (57,263) (49,896)
Gross profit EF 50,102 44,621
Other income and other net losses HEm AR E M EIEF5E 7 16,647 (15,322)
Impairment of losses under expected EREEBEEEN TRE
credit loss model, net of reversal B8 - kR 7 (5,243) (802)
Selling and distribution expenses $HE L HK A (8,364) (10,990)
Administrative expenses TEAX (46,140) (45,990)
Finance costs A& KA 8 (143) s
Profit/(loss) before taxation BRERIEF (BE) 6,859 (28,483)
Income tax expenses Frigfi s 9 9,524) (142)
Loss for the year FREE 10 (2,665) (28,625)
Other comprehensive income/(expenses) HttZEW A~ (BIxX)
Items that may be reclassified subsequently B EEEH HEE
to profit or loss: B&®EZHERB:
Exchange differences arising on MEBINEBEEZIERER
translation of foreign operations 613 (586)
Other comprehensive income/(expenses)  F A E 2
for the year WA (BX%) 613 (586)
Total comprehensive expenses for the year F R 2B XA (2,052) (29,211)
Loss attributable to: EhEE:
Owners of the Company VIN/NEIEEF SN (2,665) (28,625)
Non controlling interests R E R = =
(2,665) (28,625)
Total comprehensive expenses EhEEAZAE:
attributable to:
Owners of the Company VIN/NEIESF SN (2,052) (29,211)
Non controlling interests R R = =
(2,052) (29,211)
Loss per share BRER
Basic (HK cents) B GBI 14 (0.69) (7.42)
Diluted (HK cents) g B N/A T 3E F N/A i
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e BB R

As at 31 December 2019 R —F—hF+_-_H=+—H

2019 2018
—®E-NE —T-)\F
Notes HK$000 HK$000
Bia FET FET
Non current assets IRBEE
Property, plant and equipment M R RRE 15 451 1,030
Right-of-use assets EREEE 16 6,562 =
Goodwill EES 17 5,161 5,161
Intangible assets B EE 18 = 6,524
Equity investments at fair value through BRBHEREAREINEZ
profit or loss BAEE 20 46,387 45,965
58,561 58,680
Current assets REEE
Accounts and other receivables JFE U BR 5k &% EL i FE I FR0E 21 53,428 42,564
Loan receivables FEWE R 22 14,235 14,475
Held for trading investments FIEEERE 23 5,196 7,019
Cash and bank balances e RRITE R 24 106,054 100,332
178,913 164,390
Current liabilities REBEE
Accounts and other payables JRE A1 8% R K HL th & A< FRIE 25 44,163 42,570
Lease liabilities HEBE 26 2,430 =
Tax liabilities HEAE 27(a) 10,964 1,616
57,557 44,186
Net current assets BRBEE 121,356 120,204
Total assets less current liabilities HWEERRBAERE 179,917 178,884
Non current liabilities kRBEME
Deferred tax liabilities EEFREEE 27(b) = 1,077
Lease liabilities HEBE 26 4,162 -
4,162 1,077
Net assets REE 175,755 177,807
Capital and reserves MR R & 28
Share capital A& A< 3,858 3,858
Reserves w1 169,868 171,920
Equity attributable to owners of ZANY/NCIES PN g
the Company 173,726 175,778
Non-controlling interests FEIERR 2,029 2,029
Total equity EHBE 175,755 177,807
Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on —E_TF-A=T—H - KEZgH
31 March 2020. R RT3 -
Chow Chi Wa Yang Xingan
BEE BEZ
Director Director
EF g
@ Sino Splendid Holdings Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2019



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUIW
mEEREER

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #ZE=F—NF+=HA=+—HIFE

Attributable

Capital to non-

Share Share Capital  Goodwill ~ redemption Reserves  Translation Retained controlling
capital ~ premium reserves reserves reserves fund reserves profits Subtotal interests Total

g%
Rk ROBE  EABE  BEEE  WERRE fEE  EXRRE  REEH Nt FBRER ag
(Note 28 (Note 28 (Note 28 (Note 28 (Note 28 (Note 28

(Note 28(a)) (b)@) (b)) (b)) (b)) (b)) (b)) (Note 28(d))
(Hritas (K28 (K28 (Kzk2e (Kzk2e (M (Hrs
(B3E26(a)) (b)) (b)Gii)) (b i) (b)(iv)) bw) (b)(vi)) ()

HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSOOD  HKSU0O  HKSOO0  HKSOOD  HKSOOO  HKSUOD  HKSOOO  HKSOOD  HKSUOO
FAT TE7 77 T TET TET TET TET TET TET TET

At 1 January 2018 RZE-N\§-A-R 3,858 72,982 755 (31,193) 11,690 19,025 48,004 79,868 204,989 2,029 207,018
Loss for the year ERER - - - - - - - (28,625 (28,625 - (28,625)
Other comprehensive expenses EREMEARY

for the year - - - - - - (586) - (586) - (586)

Total comprehensive expenses ERTERXEE

for the year - - - - - - (586) (28,625) (29,211) - (29,211
At 31 December 2018 RZF-NE

and 1 January 2019 +-A=t-BR

“E-nE-A-H 3,858 72,982 755 (31,193) 11,690 19,025 47,418 51,243 175,778 2,029 177,807

Loss for the year FRER - - - - - - - 2,665) 2,665) = 2,665)
Other comprehensive income EREHIARA

for the year - - - - - - 613 - 613 - 613
Total comprehensive expenses EREER AR

for the year - - - - - - 613 (2,665) (2,052) - (2,052)
At 31 December 2019 RZZ-NE+=A=1-R 3,858 72,982 755 (31,193) 11,690 19,025 48,031 48,578 173,726 2,029 175,755
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

celReRER

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z =%

—ANF+—A=F—HUFE

2019 2018
ZEB-NF —ZT-N\F
HK$’000 HK$000
FHET TET
Profit/(loss) before tax BB RS A, (E18) 6,859 (28,483)
Adjustments for: A
Amortisation of intangible assets | A = 6,524 7,526
Bank interest income ]RITH B WA (1) 3)
Depreciation of property, M HBRZENE
plant and equipment 589 721
Depreciation of right-of-use assets EREEENE 2,359 -
Finance costs & BAR 143 -
Written off of intangible assets | & E 8 - 2,667
Impairment loss recognised in respect of — BEFEM AR FNEER 2 B E 18
accounts receivable 5,503 795
Written off of equity investments BRBEGRRBAABEINEZ
at fair value through profit or loss PR AN £ 8 8 - 20,000
(Reversal of) impairment loss recognised St E FI#R ZREEE (B Q)
in respect of loan receivable (260) 7
Loss on disposal of held for trading HERFEERECZER
investments - 2,093
Fair value change on equity investments FBBEmRRAREIEZ
at fair value through profit or loss BRAREZ AR EE 1,823 5,698
Investment income on equity investments FERE@RXBAABEINEZ
at fair value through profit or loss/ BRARE AIHHERE Y
available for sale investments B WA (18,149) (14,562)
Operating cash flows before working BEESHBAZRERENRE
capital changes 5,390 (3,541)
Increase in accounts receivables JrE Uk BR ZR 38 0 (16,760) (10,942)
Decrease/(increase) in prepayments, FERNFRIA - 2 N CH e U R IR
deposits and other receivables wm, () 393 (5,801)
Purchase of held for trading investments BEREFEERE - (3,204)
Proceed from disposal on held HERIEEEREMREHA
for trading investments - 1,519
Decrease in accounts payables & A<F BR TR (254) (155)
Increase in other payables and HAth & A 5008 K e ET & E 1S 0
accrued liabilities 1,847 4,228
Increase in loan receivables JE U B SR8 hn 500 (5,528)
Cash generated from/(used in) in operations #& & ¥ 15, (FTA)ZH & (8,884) (23,424)
Interest on lease liabilities paid BENEEAERNE (143) -
Income tax paid B ATER (1,253) (1,825)
Net cash used in operating activities REXBMACRE TR (10,280) (25,249)
@ Sino Splendid Holdings Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2019



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
an\ IE:@/JILE’%%

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #ZE=F—NF+=HA=+—HIFE

2019 2018
—E-hEF —T-N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Cash flows from investing activities RETBHZHERE
Dividend income received from BUERBRREZAREBEIEZ
equity investment at fair value MR E 2 B BA
through profit or loss 18,149 14,562
Interest received BF A 1 3
Purchases of equity investment at BERBERRRAAEIEZ
fair value through profit or loss f% A48 & (422) (528)
Purchases of property, BEYE HMENREE
plant and equipment = (33)
Net cash generated from investing activities REEFEFIEREFHE 17,728 14,004
Cash flows from financing activities METDFSRERE
Repayment of lease liabilities EEBEEEE (2,342) =
Cash used in financing activities METBHFFARE (2,342) =
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and ReRASESEYEN (BD) FHE
cash equivalents 5,106 (11,245)
Cash and cash equivalents RENZzRE MR EEY
at beginning of year 100,332 111,901
Effect of exchange rate changes on EXEHPHRE LR EFEOITE
cash and cash equivalents 616 (324)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year REZKAZHRERBRELEEY 106,054 100,332
Represented by: B
Bank balances and cash RITEBERE 106,054 100,332
FEERRRERBRLT —hFEEH @



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2019 B2 = F— N F+=-H=+—HILFZE

GENERAL

The Company is an exempted company incorporated in
the Cayman Islands and its shares are listed on GEM of
the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). The addresses of the registered office and
principal place of business of the Company are disclosed in
the corporate information of the annual report.

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The
principal activities of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) are (i) travel media
operations with provision of advertising services through
the internet and travel magazines, event organising services
and magazine publication; (ii) provision of contents and
advertising services in a well known financial magazine;
(iii) investment in securities; and (iv) money lending. The
principal subsidiaries and their activities are set out in note
19.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars (“HK$”) other than the subsidiary established in
the Republic of Singapore (“Singapore”) of which the functional
currency of the Company and its subsidiaries are HK$.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(@) New and Amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year
The Group has applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) for
the first time in the current year:

HKFRS 16 Leases
HK(IFRIC)-Int 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments

Amendments to HKFRS 9 Prepayment Features with Negative
Compensation

Amendments to HKAS 19 Plan Amendment, Curtailment or
Settlement
Amendments to HKAS 28 Long-term Interests in Associates and

Joint Ventures

Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2015-2017 Cycle

@ Sino Splendid Holdings Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e IR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #ZE=F—NF+=HA=+—HIFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) — Continued
(@) New and Amendments to HKFRSs that are

mandatorily effective for the current year —
Continued

Except as described below, the application of the
new and amendments to HKFRSs in the current year
has had no material impact on the Group’s financial
performance and positions for the current and prior
years and/or on the disclosures set out in these
consolidated financial statements.

HKFRS 16 Leases
The Group has applied HKFRS 16 for the first time in

the current year. HKFRS 16 superseded HKAS 17 Leases
(“HKAS 17”), and the related interpretations.

Definition of a lease

The Group has elected the practical expedient to apply
HKFRS 16 to contracts that were previously identified
as leases applying HKAS 17 and HK(IFRIC)-Int 4
Determining whether an Arrangement contains a Lease
and not apply this standard to contracts that were not
previously identified as containing a lease. Therefore,
the Group has not reassessed contracts which already
existed prior to the date of initial application.

For contracts entered into or modified on or after
1 January 2019, the Group applies the definition of a
lease in accordance with the requirements set out in
HKFRS 16 in assessing whether a contract contains a
lease.

As a lessee
The Group has applied HKFRS 16 retrospectively with

the cumulative effect recognised at the date of initial
application, 1 January 2019.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
n‘/-ﬁ 7_|- ﬁ% #& % Mj- -LE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 B2 = F— N F+=-H=+—HILFZE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS J48

ERAHITE B EHREER
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING (B KBREED]) RE
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) — Continued HP

(@) New and Amendments to HKFRSs that are (@ REFEBREHERZFHITE

mandatorily effective for the current year — B IR EER KRBT AR -

Continued F

HKFRS 16 Leases — Continued %C/%gjfi?f/f%%@g//%l6%ﬁ
g —5”“’

As a lessee — Continued EEERBA—E

When applying the modified retrospective approach
under HKFRS 16 at transition, the Group applied the
following practical expedients to leases previously
classified as operating leases under HKAS 17, on
lease-by-lease basis, to the extent relevant to the
respective lease contracts:

(i) relied on the assessment of whether leases
are onerous by applying HKAS 37 Provisions,
Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets as an
alternative of impairment review;

(ii) elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and
lease liabilities for leases with lease term ends
within 12 months of the date of initial application;

(iii) excluded initial direct costs from measuring the
right-of-use assets at the date of initial application;
and

(iv) used hindsight based on facts and circumstances
as at date of initial application in determining the
lease term for the Group’s leases with extension
and termination options.

When recognising the lease liabilities for leases
previously classified as operating leases, the Group has
applied incremental borrowing rates of the relevant
group entities at the date of initial application. The
weighted average incremental borrowing rates applied
by the relevant group entities range from 3% to 5%.

@ Sino Splendid Holdings Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e IR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #ZE=F—NF+=HA=+—HIFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS 2.
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) — Continued

(@) New and Amendments to HKFRSs that are

FERHIEEMBREER

(BEEMBREEA]) KB
Al A&

@ REFEBRHEMRZHTE

mandatorily effective for the current year —

7 815 4R 85 2 A R B AT

Continued &
HKFRS 16 Leases — Continued BB EHREERFE 165
jgﬁ:;_/%

As a lessee — Continued

EREBA-E

HK’000
TETT
Operating lease commitments disclosed R_ZE-—N\F+ZHA=+—H
at 31 December 2018 BREZEEHEAE 8,835
Less: commitments relating to leases exempt  J& : #A % & AL 10 & FA BA A IE -
from capitalisation:
— short-term leases and other leases — 5 HATE & K R gR7H A7
with remaining lease term ending on RZE—NF+-_A=+—H=
or before 31 December 2019 Z AIAE R H AT & (688)
8,147
Less: total future interest expenses T RIRF B 2% (106)
Total lease liabilities recognised R_T—hF— A BERIN
at 1 January 2019 HEBGBERR 8,041
Analysed as DA
Current nE 1,752
Non-current FER B 6,289
8,041

Transition to HKFRS 16 does not have impact on

retained earnings at 1 January 2019.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
n‘/-ﬁ 7_|- ﬁ% #& % Mj- -LE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 B2 = F— N F+=-H=+—HILFZE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS 2.
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) — Continued
(@) New and Amendments to HKFRSs that are (@ REFEBREHERZFHITE

mandatorily effective for the current year — B IR EER KRBT AR -
Continued F
HKFRS 16 Leases — Continued %C/%gjﬁzf/f%/ BIZE 165 #

g —5”“’

ERFEMBA—E

CHRRZZE—NF—A—HZE

EMBERAREER 2 BIELY

UTHE - RXEHTEIBEE

FERMIBEEMBREER
([BEBMBERELE
N |

As a lessee — Continued
The following adjustments were made to the amounts
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial

position at 1 January 2019. Line items that were not

affected by the changes have not been included. WABEEA-
Carrying
amounts Carrying
previously amounts

reported at
31 December

under HKFRS
16 1 January

2018 Adjustment 2019
S Al
R=-B-N\F R=-ZB—N#F
+=A —HA—H
=+—H BERUKRS
23|z EAIE165%5
REE FE ETREE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$000
FHEIT FET FHET
Non-current assets IRBEE
Right-of-use assets PHEEE = 8,041 8,041
Current liabilities REAE
Lease liabilities HEBRE - (1,752) (1,752)
Non-current liabilities FREAE
Lease liabilities HEBE - (6,289) (6,289)

@ Sino Splendid Holdings Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR A

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #ZE=F—NF+=HA=+—HIFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) — Continued
(b) New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but

not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but are
not yet effective:

HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts'

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of Business

Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets
and HKAS 28 between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture?

Amendments to HKAS 1 Definition of Material*
and HKAS 8
Amendments to HKFRS 9, Interest Rate Benchmark Reform*

HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2021

2 Effective for business combinations and asset acquisitions
for which the acquisition date is on or after the beginning
of the first annual period beginning on or after 1 January
2020

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date
to be determined

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2020

In addition to the above new and amendments to
HKFRSs, a revised Conceptual Framework for Financial
Reporting was issued in 2018. Its consequential
amendments, the Amendments to References to the
Conceptual Framework in HKFRS Standards, will be
effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2020.

Except for the new and amendments to HKFRSs
mentioned below, the directors consider that the
application of all new and amendments to HKFRSs and
HKASs is unlikely to have a material impact on the
Group’s financial position and performance as well as
disclosure in foreseeable future.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
n‘/-ﬁ 7_|- ﬁ% #& % Mj- -LE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 B2 = F— N F+=-H=+—HILFZE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS 2. ERAFHITEBMEREER
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING (B KBREED]) RE
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) — Continued HP
(b) New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but (b) EEMFEMKRERZFHITE

not yet effective — Continued

Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting
2018 (the “New Framework”) and the
Amendments to References to the Conceptual
Framework in HKFRS Standard's

The New Framework:

e reintroduces the terms stewardship and prudence;

e introduces a new asset definition that focuses on
rights and a new liability definition that is likely to
be broader than the definition it replaces, but does
not change the distinction between a liability and
an equity instrument;

e discusses historical cost and current value
measures, and provides additional guidance on
how to select a measurement basis for a particular
asset or liability;

e states that the primary measure of financial
performance is profit or loss, and that only in
exceptional circumstances other comprehensive
income will be used and only for income or
expenses that arise from a change in the current
value of an asset or liability; and

e discusses uncertainty, derecognition, unit of
account, the reporting entity and combined
financial statements.

Consequential amendments have been made so that
references in certain HKFRSs have been updated to the
New Framework, whilst some HKFRSs are still referred
to the previous versions of the framework. These
amendments are effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2020, with earlier application
permitted. Other than specific standards which still
refer to the previous versions of the framework, the
Group will rely on the New Framework on its effective
date in determining the accounting policies especially
for transactions, events or conditions that are not
otherwise dealt with under the accounting standards.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e IR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #ZE=F—NF+=HA=+—HIFE

3. FEETTEHEK
(@) 6 EH

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(a) Statement of compliance

(b)

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards issued by the HKICPA. In
addition, the consolidated financial statements include
applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on GEM of the Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (“Listing Rules”) and the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on the historical cost basis except for certain
financial instruments that are measured at fair values
at the end of each reporting period, as explained in the
accounting policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of
the consideration given in exchange for goods and
services.

All amounts are presented in Hong Kong dollar
thousands (“HK$’000”) in these consolidated financial
statements, unless otherwise stated.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell
an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the
measurement date, regardless of whether that price
is directly observable or estimated using another
valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of
an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account
the characteristics of the asset or liability if market
participants would take those characteristics into
account when pricing the asset or liability at the
measurement date. Fair value for measurement and/or
disclosure purposes in these consolidated financial
statements is determined on such a basis, except for
share-based payment transactions that are within
the scope of HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment, leasing
transactions that are accounted for in accordance with
HKFRS 16 (since 1 January 2019) or HKAS 17 (before
application of HKFRS 16), and measurements that have
some similarities to fair value but are not fair value,
such as net realisable value in HKAS 2 Inventories or
value in use in HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2019 B2 = F— N F+=-H=+—HILFZE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES -
Continued

(b) Basis of preparation — Continued

(c)

For financial instruments which are transacted at fair
value and a valuation technique that unobservable
inputs is to be used to measure fair value in subsequent
periods, the valuation technique is calibrated so that at
initial recognition the results of the valuation technique
equals the transaction price.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair
value measurements are categorised into Level 1,
2 or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs to
the fair value measurements are observable and the
significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement
in its entirety, which are described as follows:

e Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities that
the entity can access at the measurement date;

e Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

e Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset
or liabilities.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Company and entities
controlled by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control
is achieved when the Company:

e has power over the investee;

e is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from
its involvement with the investee; and

e has the ability to use its power to affect its returns

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there
are changes to one or more of the three elements of
control listed above.

@ Sino Splendid Holdings Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e IR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #ZE=F—NF+=HA=+—HIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - 3. XREHBRR-&

Continued

(c) Basis of consolidation — Continued (c) REEE-E
Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group BN E S B A A R
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when RK-BIHABHESEE AR ME
the Group loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically, RNRRKREWN B R E] R 25 2
income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or K- TBHESE AKR-AR
disposed of during the year are included in the mE FRAKRBIEENE QA
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other COR N Al A N el S E L
comprehensive income from the date the Group gains BArREHEz B BEERN
control until the date when the Group ceases to control SETBEAMBARENE L
the subsidiary. Bl -JAGZaEREMEE

Was R A e

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive i M) 3 B 48 N M8 L 4t & T W A
income are attributed to the owners of the HE ORBRARAFEAAR
Company and to the non-controlling interests. Total JEFERR M SR o T B & Al H) 2 E R
comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed to REEEBRNARAREAARIE
the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling 22 A 25 - B Itk 2R A K FE PR AR
interests even if this results in the non-controlling R E AL BREE

interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial HWEFTE MEQRNTBRE
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting HTHEBE EESHBRETE
policies in line with the Group’s accounting policies. SENGETHR-

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, AEBETRARBIXENMAESE
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions EARFIENEEREE #a -
between members of the Group are eliminated in full WA FAXEREREHNES
on consolidation. B BB B

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented BT B8 2 A ) FE 4% AR 25 8 B K
separately from the Group’s equity therein, which SEsRGEEBEEINR AHEER
represent present ownership interests entitling their DEEFBBEEBESEGEENE
holders to a proportionate share of net assets of the RABEERZ FEENLOIDRE
relevant subsidiaries upon liquidation. AT EER -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
n‘/-ﬁ 7_|- ﬁ% #ﬁ %% Mj- -LE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 B2 = F— N F+=-H=+—HILFZE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - 3. TEEHHE-&
Continued

(d) Goodwill d) 8

Goodwill arising on acquisitions prior to

1 January 2005

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of net assets and
operations of another entity for which the acquisition
date is before 1 January 2005 represents the excess of
the cost of acquisition over the Group’s interest in the
fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the
relevant acquiree at the date of acquisition.

Goodwill arising on acquisitions prior to 1 January
2001 continues to be held in reserves, and will be
transferred to the retained earnings at the time when
the business to which the goodwill relates is disposed
of or when a cash-generating unit (“CGU”) to which the
goodwill relates becomes impaired.

For previously capitalised goodwill arising on
acquisitions of new assets and operations of another
entity after 1 January 2001, the Group has discontinued
amortisation from 1 January 2005 onwards, and
such goodwill is tested for impairment annually, and
whenever there is an indication that the CGU unit to
which the goodwill relates may be impaired (see the
accounting policy below).

Goodwill arising on acquisition on or after

1 January 2005

Goodwill arising on acquisition on or after 1 January
2005 was recognised as an asset and initially measured
at cost, being the excess of the cost of the acquisition
over the Group’s interest in the recognised amounts
of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities recognised. If, after assessment, the Group’s
interest in the recognised amounts of the acquiree’s
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities
exceeded the cost of the acquisition, the excess was
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

@ Sino Splendid Holdings Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR M EE
For the year ended 31 December 2019 B —F—NF+-HA=+1+—HIFEZF
3. FEBTHHR-&
d) BE-&

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES -
Continued

(d) Goodwill - Continued

Goodwill arising on acquisition on or after

1 January 2005 — Continued

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is
carried at cost as established at the date of acquisition
of the business less accumulated impairment losses, if
any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is
allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units
(or group of cash-generating units) that is expected to
benefit from the synergies of the combination, which
represent the lowest level at which the goodwill is
monitored for internal management purposes and not
larger than an operating segment.

A cash-generating unit (or group of cash-generating
units) to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for
impairment annually or more frequently when there is
indication that the unit may be impaired. For goodwill
arising on an acquisition in a reporting period, the
cash-generating unit (or group of cash-generating units)
to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for
impairment before the end of that reporting period. If
the recoverable amount is less than its carrying amount,
the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the
carrying amount of any goodwill and then to the other
assets on a pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount
of each asset in the unit (or group of cash-generating
units).

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit or
any of the cash-generating unit within the group
of cash-generating units, the attributable amount
of goodwill is included in the determination of the
amount of profit or loss on disposal. When the Group
disposes of an operation within the cash-generating
unit (or a cash-generating unit within a group of
cash-generating units), the amount of goodwill disposed
of is measured on the basis of the relative values of the
operation (or the cash-generating unit) disposed of and
the portion of the cash-generating unit (or the group of
cash-generating units) retained.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2019 B2 = F— N F+=-H=+—HILFZE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - 3. FESTHE &
Continued
(e) Property, plant and equipment (e) WX HIB|RRE

Property, plant and equipment are tangible assets
that are held for use in the supply of services or for
administrative purpose. Property, plant and equipment
are stated at cost less subsequent accumulated
depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment
losses, if any.

The cost of property, plant and equipment includes its
purchase price and the costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow
to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is
derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are
recognised as an expense in profit or loss during the
financial period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost
of items of property, plant and equipment less their
residual values over their estimated useful lives, using
the straight-line method. The estimated useful lives,
residual values and depreciation method are reviewed
at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of
any changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective
basis. The useful lives are as follows:

Leasehold improvements Shorter of remaining
lease term or 3-5 years

Furniture and fixtures 5 years

Office equipment 5 years

Computer equipment 3 years
and software

Motor vehicles 5 years
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e IR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #ZE=F—NF+=HA=+—HIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES -
Continued

(e) Property, plant and equipment — Continued

(f)

An asset is written down immediately to its recoverable
amount if its carrying amount is higher than the asset’s
estimated recoverable amount.

An item of property, plant and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from the
continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on
the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant
and equipment is determined as the difference between
the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset
and is recognised in profit or loss.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that
are acquired separately are carried at costs less
accumulated amortisation and any accumulated
impairment losses. Amortisation for intangible assets
with finite useful lives is recognised on a straight-line
basis over their estimated useful lives. The estimated
useful life and amortisation method are reviewed at
the end of each reporting period, with the effect of
any changes in estimate being accounted for on a
prospective basis.

Intangible assets acquired in a business
combination

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination
are recognised separately from goodwill and are
initially recognised at their fair value at the acquisition
date (which is regarded as their cost).

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets
acquired in a business combination with finite
useful lives are reported at costs less accumulated
amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses,
on the same basis as intangible assets that are acquired
separately.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 B2 = F— N F+=-H=+—HILFZE

3. FEETHR-&

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES -
Continued

(g) Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
when a group entity becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. All regular way
purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised
and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way
purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery of assets within the time
frame established by regulation or convention in the
market place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value except for trade receivables
arising from contracts with customers which are initially
measured in accordance with HKFRS 15. Transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition
or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities
(other than financial assets or financial liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL")) are added
to or deducted from the fair value of the financial
assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial
recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to
the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities
at FVTPL are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset or financial
liability and of allocating interest income and interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest
rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future
cash receipts and payments (including all fees and
points paid or received that form an integral part of
the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other
premiums or discounts) through the expected life
of the financial asset or financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying
amount on initial recognition.

Interest/dividend income which are derived from the
Group’s ordinary course of business are presented as
revenue.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e IR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #ZE=F—NF+=HA=+—HIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES -
Continued

(g) Financial instruments — Continued

Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at amortised cost:

e the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is to collect contractual cash
flows; and

e the contractual terms give rise on specified dates
to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at
FVTPL.

A financial asset is held for trading if:

e it has been acquired principally for the purpose of
selling in the near term; or

e on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of
identified financial instruments that the Group
manages together and has a recent actual pattern
of short-term profit-taking; or

e it is a derivative that is not designated and effective
as a hedging instrument.

In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate a
financial asset that are required to be measured at
the amortised cost or FVTOCI as measured at FVTPL
if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an
accounting mismatch.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2019 B2 = F— N F+=-H=+—HILFZE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES -
Continued

(g) Financial instruments — Continued
Financial assets — Continued
Classification and subsequent measurement of financial

assets — Continued
(i) Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective
interest method for financial assets measured
subsequently at amortised cost. Interest income
is calculated by applying the effective interest
rate to the gross carrying amount of a financial
asset, except for financial assets that have
subsequently become credit-impaired (see below).
For financial assets that have subsequently become
credit-impaired, interest income is recognised by
applying the effective interest rate to the amortised
cost of the financial asset from the next reporting
period. If the credit risk on the credit-impaired
financial instrument improves so that the financial
asset is no longer credit-impaired, interest income
is recognised by applying the effective interest
rate to the gross carrying amount of the financial
asset from the beginning of the reporting period
following the determination that the asset is no
longer credit-impaired.

(i) Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for
being measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI or
designated as FVTOCI are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair
value at the end of each reporting period, with
any fair value gains or losses recognised in profit
or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or
loss excludes any dividend or interest earned on
the financial asset and is included in the “other
income and other net losses” line item.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR M EE
For the year ended 31 December 2019 B —F—NF+-HA=+1+—HIFEZF

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - 3. FEEHHE-&

Continued

(g) Financial instruments — Continued (g €M TR
Financial assets — Continued THEE—E
Impairment of financial assets SREERE

The Group performs impairment assessment under
expected credit loss (“ECL”) model on financial assets
(including account receivables, loan receivables, other
receivables and bank balances which are subject to
impairment under HKFRS 9. The amount of ECL is
updated at each reporting date to reflect changes in
credit risk since initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from
all possible default events over the expected life of
the relevant instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL
(“12m ECL") represents the portion of lifetime ECL
that is expected to result from default events that are
possible within 12 months after the reporting date.
Assessment are done based on the Group's historical
credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that are
specific to the debtors, general economic conditions
and an assessment of both the current conditions at
the reporting date as well as the forecast of future
conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for account
receivables without significant financing component.
The ECL on these assets are assessed individually for
debtors with significant balances and/or collectively
using a provision matrix with appropriate groupings.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the
loss allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless when there
has been a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition, the Group recognises lifetime ECL.
The assessment of whether lifetime ECL should be
recognised is based on significant increases in the
likelihood or risk of a default occurring since initial
recognition.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2019 B2 = F— N F+=-H=+—HILFZE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES -
Continued

(g) Financial instruments — Continued

Financial assets — Continued
Impairment of financial assets — Continued

(i)

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument as at the reporting date with
the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the date of initial recognition. In
making this assessment, the Group considers both
quantitative and qualitative information that is
reasonable and supportable, including historical
experience and forward-looking information that is
available without undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken
into account when assessing whether credit risk
has increased significantly:

e an actual or expected significant deterioration
in the financial instrument’s external (if
available) or internal credit rating;

e significant deterioration in external market
indicators of credit risk, e.g. a significant
increase in the credit spread, the credit default
swap prices for the debtor;

e existing or forecast adverse changes in
business, financial or economic conditions
that are expected to cause a significant
decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its
debt obligations;

e an actual or expected significant deterioration
in the operating results of the debtor;

e an actual or expected significant adverse
change in the regulatory, economic, or
technological environment of the debtor that
results in a significant decrease in the debtor’s
ability to meet its debt obligations.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e IR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z =%

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES -
Continued

(g) Financial instruments — Continued
Financial assets — Continued
Impairment of financial assets — Continued

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Significant increase in credit risk — Continued
I[rrespective of the outcome of the above
assessment, the Group presumes that the credit risk
has increased significantly since initial recognition
when contractual payments are more than 30
days past due, unless the Group has reasonable
and supportable information that demonstrates
otherwise.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of
the criteria used to identify whether there has been
a significant increase in credit risk and revises
them as appropriate to ensure that the criteria are
capable of identifying significant increase in credit
risk before the amount becomes past due.

Definition of default

The Group considers that default has occurred
when a financial asset is more than 90 days
past due unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information to demonstrate that a more
lagging default criterion is more appropriate.

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or
more events that have a detrimental impact on the
estimated future cash flows of that financial asset
have occurred. Evidence that a financial asset is
credit-impaired includes observable data about the
following events:

(a) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
the borrower;

a breach of contract, such as a default or past
due event;

the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the
borrower a concession(s) that the lender(s)
would not otherwise consider; and

it is becoming probable that the borrower
will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2019 B2 = F— N F+=-H=+—HILFZE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES -
Continued

(g) Financial instruments — Continued

Financial assets — Continued
Impairment of financial assets — Continued

(iv) Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there
is information indicating that the counterparty is in
severe financial difficulty and there is no realistic
prospect of recovery. Financial assets written off
may still be subject to enforcement activities under
the Group’s recovery procedures, taking into
account legal advice where appropriate. A write-off
constitutes a derecognition event. Any subsequent
recoveries are recognised in profit or loss.

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the
probability of default, loss given default (i.e.
the magnitude of the loss if there is a default)
and the exposure at default. The assessment
of the probability of default and loss given
default is based on historical data adjusted by
forward-looking information. Estimation of ECL
reflects an unbiased and probability-weighted
amount that is determined with the respective risks
of default occurring as the weights.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all
contractual cash flows that are due to the Group
in accordance with the contract and the cash flows
that the Group expects to receive, discounted
at the effective interest rate determined at initial
recognition.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e IR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #ZE=F—NF+=HA=+—HIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES -
Continued

(g) Financial instruments — Continued
Financial assets — Continued
Impairment of financial assets — Continued

(v)

Measurement and recognition of ECL — Continued

Where ECL is measured on a collective basis or
cater for cases where evidence at the individual
instrument level may not yet be available, the
financial instruments are grouped on the following
basis:

e Nature of financial instruments (i.e. the
Group’s trade and other receivables, finance
lease receivables and amounts due from
customers are each assessed as a separate
group. Loans to related parties are assessed for
ECL on an individual basis);

e Past-due status;

e Nature, size and industry of debtors; and

e External credit ratings where available.

The grouping is regularly reviewed by management
to ensure the constituents of each group continue
to share similar credit risk characteristics.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset unless the
financial asset is credit-impaired, in which case
interest income is calculated based on amortised
cost of the financial asset.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss
in profit or loss for all financial instruments by
adjusting their carrying amount, with the exception
of account receivables, loan receivables where the
corresponding adjustment is recognised through a
loss allowance account.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Re MR M EE
For the year ended 31 December 2019 # 2 —F— N F 1+ - H=+—HIFE
3. FEBTHHER-&
(g TMIA-&

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES -
Continued

(g) Financial instruments — Continued

Financial assets — Continued

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when
the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset
expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of
the asset to another entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at
amortised cost, the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and receivable is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities and equity

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either
financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with
the substance of the contractual arrangements and
the definitions of a financial liability and an equity
instrument.

Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method or at
FVTPL.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities including account payables and
accruals and other payables are subsequently measured
at amortised cost, using the effective interest method.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and
only when, the Group’s obligations are discharged,
cancelled or have expired. The difference between the
carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised
and the consideration paid and payable is recognised
in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR M EE
For the year ended 31 December 2019 B —F—NF+-HA=+1+—HIFEZF
3. FEBTHHR-&
(h) M=% HERRE E£HAE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES -
Continued

(h) Impairment on property, plant and equipment,

right-of-use assets, and intangible assets other
than goodwill

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of its property, plant and
equipment, right-of-use assets, intangible assets with
finite useful lives to determine whether there is any
indication that these assets have suffered an impairment
loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable
amount of the relevant asset is estimated in order to
determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any).

The recoverable amount of property, plant and
equipment, right-of-use assets, and intangible assets
are estimated individually. When it is not possible
to estimate the recoverable amount individually,
the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

In addition, the Group assesses whether there is
indication that corporate assets may be impaired.
If such indication exists, corporate assets are also
allocated to individual cash-generating units, when
a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can
be identified, or otherwise they are allocated to the
smallest group of cash-generating units for which a
reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be
identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset (or a cash-generating
unit) for which the estimates of future cash flows have
not been adjusted.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Re MR M EE
For the year ended 31 December 2019 # 2 —F— N F 1+ - H=+—HIFE
3. FEBTHHER-&
(hy % HERRE E£HAE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES -
Continued

(h) Impairment on property, plant and equipment,

right-of-use assets, and intangible assets other
than goodwill — Continued

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a
cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than its
carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or
a cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable
amount. For corporate assets or portion of corporate
assets which cannot be allocated on a reasonable
and consistent basis to a cash-generating unit, the
Group compares the carrying amount of a group of
cash-generating units, including the carrying amounts
of the corporate assets or portion of corporate assets
allocated to that group of cash-generating units, with
the recoverable amount of the group of cash-generating
units. In allocating the impairment loss, the impairment
loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of
any goodwill (if applicable) and then to the other assets
on a pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount of
each asset in the unit. The carrying amount of an asset
is not reduced below the highest of its fair value less
costs of disposal (if measurable), its value in use (if
determinable) and zero. The amount of the impairment
loss that would otherwise have been allocated to the
asset is allocated pro rata to the other assets of the unit.
An impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit
or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit)
is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable
amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does
not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised
for the asset (or a cash-generating unit) in prior
years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e IR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #ZE=F—NF+=HA=+—HIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - 3. FEEHHE-&
Continued

(i) Leases (i) H&

Detfinition of a lease (upon application of
HKFRS 16 in accordance with transitions in
note 2)

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an identified
asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified or arising from
business combinations on or after the date of initial
application, the Group assesses whether a contract is or
contains a lease based on the definition under HKFRS
16 at inception, modification date or acquisition date,
as appropriate. Such contract will not be reassessed
unless the terms and conditions of the contract are
subsequently changed.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets
The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to leases of equipment that have a lease
term of 12 months or less from the commencement date
and do not contain a purchase option. It also applies
the recognition exemption for lease of low-value
assets. Lease payments on short-term leases and leases
of low-value assets are recognised as expense on a
straight-line basis or another systematic basis over the
lease term.

Right-of-use assets
The cost of right-of-use asset includes:

e the amount of the initial measurement of the lease
liability;

e any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, less any lease incentives

received;

e any initial direct costs incurred by the Group; and
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
n‘/-ﬁ 7_|- ﬁ% #ﬁ %% Mj- -LE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 B2 = F— N F+=-H=+—HILFZE

3. TEEHBE-B&
(i) HE-&

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES -
Continued

(i) Leases — Continued

Right-of-use assets — Continued

* an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group
in dismantling and removing the underlying assets,
restoring the site on which it is located or restoring
the underlying asset to the condition required by
the terms and conditions of the lease, unless those
costs are incurred to produce inventories.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and
adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities.

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is reasonably
certain to obtain ownership of the underlying leased
assets at the end of the lease term are depreciated
from commencement date to the end of the useful
life. Otherwise, right-of-use assets are depreciated on
a straight-line basis over the shorter of its estimated
useful life and the lease term.

The Group presents right-of-use assets as a separate
line item on the consolidated statement of financial
position.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group
recognises and measures the lease liability at the
present value of lease payments that are unpaid at that
date. In calculating the present value of lease payments,
the Group uses the incremental borrowing rate at the
lease commencement date if the interest rate implicit in
the lease is not readily determinable.

The lease payments include:

e fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments) less any lease incentives receivable;

e variable lease payments that depend on an index
or a rate, initially measured using the index or rate
as at the commencement date;
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR A

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #ZE=F—NF+=HA=+—HIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES -

3. TESFHBER-&

Continued
(i) Leases — Continued

Lease liabilities — Continued
e amounts expected to be payable by the Group
under residual value guarantees;

e the exercise price of a purchase option if the
Group is reasonably certain to exercise the option;
and

e payments of penalties for terminating a lease, if the
lease term reflects the Group exercising an option
to terminate the lease.

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are
adjusted by interest accretion and lease payments.

The Group remeasures lease liabilities (and makes a
corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use
assets) whenever:

e the lease term has changed or there is a change in
the assessment of exercise of a purchase option, in
which case the related lease liability is remeasured
by discounting the revised lease payments using a
revised discount rate at the date of reassessment.

The Group as a lessee (prior to 1 January 2019)

Operating lease payments, including the cost of
acquiring land held under operating leases, are
recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis
over the lease term. Contingent rentals arising under
operating leases are recognised as an expense in the
period in which they are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Re MR M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 # 2 —F— N F 1+ - H=+—HIFE

3. XBEHBE-M

() K=ER

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES -
Continued

(j) Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a
performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control”
of the goods or services underlying the particular
performance obligation is transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service
(or a bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a
series of distinct goods or services that are substantially
the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is
recognised over time by reference to the progress
towards complete satisfaction of the relevant
performance obligation if one of the following criteria
is met:

e the customer simultaneously receives and
consumes the benefits provided by the Group’s
performance as the Group performs;

e the Group’s performance creates or enhances
an asset that the customer controls as the Group
performs; or

e the Group’s performance does not create an asset
with an alternative use to the Group and the
Group has an enforceable right to payment for
performance completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time
when the customer obtains control of the distinct good
or service.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation
to transfer goods or services to a customer for which
the Group has received consideration (or an amount of
consideration is due) from the customer.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR M EE
For the year ended 31 December 2019 B —F—NF+-HA=+1+—HIFEZF
3. FEBTHHR-&
() WEwR-E

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES -
Continued

(j) Revenue recognition — Continued

Revenue from contracts with customers —
Continued

A contract liability relating to the same contract are
accounted for and presented on a net basis.

Income from the provision of services is recognised
upon the provision of the relevant services or on a
time apportionment basis over the terms of the service
contracts.

Revenue from travel media includes income from
management fees, registration and exhibitor fees on
the various events and conferences organised by the
Group. The revenue was recognised upon completion
of the events and conferences.

All prepaid fees received from customers are initially
recognised as contract liability and revenue is
recognised when the above revenue recognition criteria
are met.

Revenue from travel media also include provision
of hotel accommodation and hotel packages which
is recognised when the services are rendered by the
Group as an agent on a net basis.

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised
when it is probable that the economic benefits will
flow to the Group and the amount of revenue can be
measured reliably. Interest income from a financial
asset is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the
principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate
applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts the
estimated future cash receipts through the expected life
of the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount
on initial recognition.

Interest income from bank deposits and loan receivables
on an accrued basis using the effective interest method
by applying the rate that discounts the estimated future
cash receipts over the expected life of the financial
instrument or a short period, when appropriate, to the
net carrying amount of the financial assets.

Dividend income is recognised when the right to
receive the dividend is established.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
n‘/-ﬁ 7_|- ﬁ% #ﬁ %% Mj- -LE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 B2 = F— N F+=-H=+—HILFZE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - 3. TEEHHE-
Continued

(k) Taxation (k) BB

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax
currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for
the year. Taxable profit differs from profit/(loss) before
taxation as reported in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income because
it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable
or deductible in other years and it further excludes
items that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s
liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end
of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities in the consolidated financial statements and
the corresponding tax bases used in the computation
of taxable profit. Except for goodwill and recognised
assets and liabilities that affect neither accounting nor
taxable profits, deferred tax liabilities are recognised
for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax
assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profits will be available against which
deductible temporary differences can be utilised.
Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates appropriate to
the expected manner in which the carrying amount of
the asset or liability is realised or settled and that have
been enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the
reporting period.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries, except where the Group is able to control
the reversal of the temporary difference and it is
probable that the temporary difference will not reverse
in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising
from deductible temporary differences associated with
such investments are only recognised to the extent that
it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits
against which it is able to utilise the benefits of the
temporary differences and they are expected to reverse
in the foreseeable future.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e IR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #ZE=F—NF+=HA=+—HIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - 3. XREHBRR-&
Continued
(k) Taxation — Continued (k) BiE—F
The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed BEERAEEZ REAESN®RE
at the end of the reporting period and reduced to HARETRN IR THEARES
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient B 2 5 e ER B g A K18 2 2B 3B
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of D EEREFR

the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liability are measured at the BEMBEENABNIEARE
tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when NeEXEREEFAREAZN
the liability is settled or the asset is realised, based Z(RERRPEEEBREER
on tax rate (and tax laws) that have been enacted HEBREm R E (KBE) )5
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting Ho

period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets BEMBERBENREE ZFTERKR
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from RRAEEMRBERZ A ARBSE
the manner in which the Group expects, at the end of HRKESHEEREERBEZ
the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying FREEZ RIBER-

amount of its assets and liabilities.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, EHNMEEFR BN BRRER
except when it relates to items that are recognised EREMEE KRS ERNEER
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, EaERZEBEBERIN E
in which case the deferred tax is also recognised in SEE ST IR FE BLIR IR 0 Bl
other comprehensive income or directly in equity b2 EKN AR EERNERER -

respectively.

In assessing any uncertainty over income tax B P 15 B B 3R BT fE A N EEE
treatments, the Group considers whether it is probable K -AEEZREEBBRER
that the relevant tax authority will accept the uncertain BEAREXENEEERER
tax treatment used, or proposed to be use by individual FRISBLER S 2 Bk 2 B &Y
group entities in their income tax filings. If it is N HETE W7 B I o i AT BE R XX
probable, the current and deferred taxes are determined B BA R0 3R AIE 75 78 1 7 TE B AT 1S A
consistently with the tax treatment in the income tax RPN GEE B -KE @A
filings. If it is not probable that the relevant taxation 150765 # B 1S K AT B4 R T HEE Y
authority will accept an uncertain tax treatment, the B EIE  AERKA NS HE
effect of each uncertainty is reflected by using either HIEREERREETHEE N

the most likely amount or the expected value. Zo
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
n‘/-ﬁ 7_|- ﬁ% #ﬁ %% Mj- -LE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 B2 = F— N F+=-H=+—HILFZE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - 3. FEEHHE-&
Continued

() Foreign currencies () Hphik

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies)
are recorded in the respective functional currency (i.e.
the currency of the primary economic environment in
which the entity operates) at the rates of exchanges
prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At the end
of the reporting period, monetary items denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried at
fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date when
the fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that
are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the translation of monetary
items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they arise. Exchange differences arising on the
retranslation of non-monetary items carried at fair value
are included in profit or loss for the period except for
differences arising on the retranslation of non-monetary
items in respect of which gains and losses are
recognised directly in other comprehensive income,
in which cases, the exchange differences are also
recognised directly in other comprehensive income.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated
financial statements, the assets and liabilities of the
Group’s foreign operations are translated into the
presentation currency of the Group (i.e. Hong Kong
dollars) at the rate of exchange prevailing at the end of
the reporting period, and their income and expenses
are translated at the average exchange rates for the year,
unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during the
period, in which case, the exchange rates prevailing at
the dates of transactions are used. Exchange differences
arising, if any, are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity (the translation
reserve). Such exchange differences are recognised
in profit or loss in the period in which the foreign
operation is disposed of.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR A

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #ZE=F—NF+=HA=+—HIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES -
Continued

)

Foreign currencies — Continued

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable
assets acquired arising on an acquisition of a foreign
operation are treated as assets and liabilities of that
foreign operation and translated at the rate of exchange
prevailing at the end of each reporting period. Exchange
differences arising are recognised in the translation
reserve.

(m) Employee benefits

(n)

(i) Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at
the undiscounted amount of the benefits expected
to be paid as and when employees rendered the
services. All short-term employee benefits are
recognised as an expense unless another HKFRS
requires or permits the inclusion of the benefit in
the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to
employees (such as wages and salaries, annual
leave and sick leave) after deducting any amount
already paid.

(ii) Retirement benefit costs
Payments to defined contribution retirement
benefit plans are recognised as an expense when
employees have rendered service entitling them to
the contributions.

Share-based payments — Equity-settled
share-based payment transactions

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees and
others providing similar services are measured of fair
value of the equity investments at the grant date.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2019 B2 = F— N F+=-H=+—HILFZE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES -
Continued

(n)

(0)

Share-based payments — Equity-settled
share-based payment transactions — Continued

The fair value of services received determined by
reference to the fair value of share options granted at
the grant date is expensed on a straight line basis over
the vesting period, with corresponding increase in
equity (share options reserve).

At the end of the reporting period, the Group revises
its estimates of the number of options that are expected
to ultimately vest. The impact of the revision of the
estimates during the vesting period, if any, is recognised
in profit or loss, with a corresponding adjustment to
share options reserve.

At the time when the share options are exercised, the
amount previously recognised in share options reserve
will be transferred to share premium.

When the share options are forfeited after the vesting
date or are still not exercised at the expiry date, the
amount previously recognised in share options reserve
will be retained in the share options reserve.

Borrowing costs

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or
loss in the period in which they are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e IR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z =%

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES -

Continued

(p) Related parties

(a)

A person or a close member of that person’s family
is related to the Group if that person:

(i)

(if)

(iii)

has control or joint control over the Group;

has significant influence over the Group; or

is a member of key management personnel of
the Group or the Company’s parent.

An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions apply:

(i)

(if)

The entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to
the others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which the
other entity is a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same
third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the third
entity.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2019 B2 = F— N F+=-H=+—HILFZE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - 3. FEEHHE-&

Continued
(p) Related parties — Continued (p) BEAL-&
(b) - Continued by —#5&
(v) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan (v) ZEBARAEEFER
for the benefit of the employees of the Group ESEERENERNR
or an entity related to the Group. & B 18 N M 2% /9 B B 12
BAE

(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by
a person identified in (a).

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of
key management personnel of the entity (or of
a parent of the entity).

(viii) The entity, or any member of a group of
which it is a part provides key management
personnel services to the Group or to the
parent of the Group.

Close members of the family of a person are
those family members who may be expected to
influence, or be influenced by, that person in their
dealings with the entity and include:

(i) that person’s children and spouse or domestic
partner;

(ii) children of that person’s spouse or domestic
partner; and

(iii) dependents of that person or that person’s
spouse or domestic partner.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e IR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #ZE=F—NF+=HA=+—HIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES -
Continued

(q) Segment reporting

(r)

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment
item reported in the financial statements, are identified
from the financial information provided regularly to
the chief operating decision-maker, i.e. the most senior
executive management for the purposes of allocating
resources to, and assessing the performance of, the
Group’s various lines of business and geographical
locations.

Individual material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless the
segments have similar economic characteristics and
are similar in respect of the nature of products and
services, the nature of production processes, the type
or class of customers, the methods used to distribute
the products or provide the services, and the nature of
the regulatory environment. Operating segments which
are not individually material may be aggregated if they
share a majority of these criteria.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past
event, it is probable that the Group will be required to
settle that obligation, and a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best
estimate of the consideration required to settle the
present obligation at the end of the reporting period,
taking into account the risks and uncertainties
surrounding the obligation. When a provision is
measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the
present obligation, its carrying amount is the present
value of those cash flows (where the effect of the time
value of money is material).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2019 B2 = F— N F+=-H=+—HILFZE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies,
which are described in Note 3, the directors of the
Company (“Directors”) are required to make estimates
and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources.
The estimates and associated assumptions are based on
historical experience and other factors that are considered
to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised
if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of
the revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods.

(@) Impairment of goodwill and goodwill reserve
The Group tests annually whether goodwill and
goodwill reserve have suffered any impairment, in
accordance with the accounting policy. The recoverable
amounts of cash-generating units have been determined
based on value-in-use calculations.

(b) Impairment loss of accounts and loans
receivable
The Group’s accounts and loans receivable are
assessed for impairment based on the expected loss
model required by HKFRS 9. The assessment made by
management has taken into account relevant historical
information adjusted for forward looking information
available to management at the date of assessment
(to the extent that such information is reasonable and
supportable without undue cost or effort). Management
has exercised judgment in estimating the amount of
expected credit loss. If the actual outcome is different
from management’s estimate, an additional impairment
loss or reversal of impairment loss may arise.

@ Sino Splendid Holdings Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e IR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z =%

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY - Continued

(c) Income taxes and deferred taxation

The Group is subject to income taxes in numerous
jurisdictions. Significant judgment is required in
determining the provision for income taxes. There
are many transactions and calculations for which
the ultimate tax determination is uncertain. Where
the final tax outcome of these matters is different
from the amounts that were initially recorded, such
differences will impact the current and deferred income
tax assets and liabilities in the period in which such
determination is made.

Deferred tax assets relating to certain temporary
differences and tax losses are recognised as
management considers it is probable that future taxable
profit will be available against which the temporary
differences or tax losses can be utilised. Where the
expectation is different from the original estimate, such
differences will impact the recognition of deferred
tax assets and taxation in the periods in which such

estimate is changed.

5. REVENUE

Revenue represents the aggregate amounts of provision
of advertising services through travel media (the “Travel
Media”), provision of advertising services through financial
magazine (the “Financial Magazine”), investment in
securities (the “Securities Investments”) and money lending

to client (the “Interest income”), are analysed as follows:

4.

—NFT—HA=1—HIFE

ERSHAE R AT TEE
e EBRFE-&

(c) BB RIELER A
REB AR % @ 50X % & 8
M - EEEMSHEGEA
FHEARHE FZRXZLRAE
FIPEHNEERBEE /T
BE-MaxSEFENKRRGE
REFIQBSONEBREMER
ZEERRTEFOALEETHY
BHEMRERSEREERA

&o

ERETHREZERRESEY
REEHBEEE AEEERAEH
%] ge & IR AR B m B LA
FA B By 2= BE ok B4 TH /E5 18 4K 8H T 7
RefBEZBRETEHRRMGETHE
=8 ZES=8 BTV ETNE
AT R ER 2 EEHEE
ERTIE -

EXRBEREAEFEBIKRERE ([IK
‘B’%ﬁ% I RHESEERE EEY
mEmw ((MRESDRHESEE
Hlﬁk *’X%’ﬁxﬁﬂu FE]) MRE
(TRBWAD BEBEE AT

2019 2018
—E-hF —E-N\F
HK$000 HK$’000
FET FET
Continuing operations FEREER
Revenue from contracts with customers: BFFE&SHUWES:
Travel media IR 2 1R B 76,792 71,116
Financial magazine B AR RS 27,510 21,874
Securities investment BERE = =
Interest income F B A 3,063 1,527
107,365 94,517
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2019 B2 = F— N F+=-H=+—HILFZE

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group determines its operating segments based on the
reports reviewed by the chief operating decision-maker that
are used to make strategic decisions.

The Group has four reportable segments. The segments
are managed separately as each business offers different
products and services and requires different business
strategies. The following summary describes the operations
in each of the Group’s reportable segments:

i. Engaged in travel media operations with provision of
advertising services through the internet and travel
magazines, event organizing services and magazine
publication (“Travel Media Business”);

ii. Provision of contents and advertising services in a
well-known financial magazine distributed in the PRC
(“Financial Magazine Business”);

iii. Investment in securities (“Securities Investment”); and

iv. Money lending business provides funds to clients
and receives loan interest income in return (“Money
Lending”).

Inter-segment transactions, if any, are priced with reference
to prices charged to external parties for similar products or
services. Corporate revenue and expenses are not allocated
to the operating segments as they are not included in
the measure of the segments’ results that is used by the
chief operating decision-maker for assessment of segment
performance.

For the purposes of assessing segment performance and
allocating resources between segments, the Group’s chief
operating decision-maker monitors the results, assets and
liabilities attributable to each reportable segment on the
following bases:

Segment assets include all tangible, intangible assets and
current assets with the exception of equity investments at
fair value through profit or loss, cash and cash equivalent
and other corporate assets. Segment liabilities include all
liabilities managed directly by the segments.

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the reportable
segments with reference to sales generated by those
segments and the expenses incurred by those segments
without allocation of corporate administrative expenses,
corporate directors’ emoluments, corporate interest income
and income tax expense. Segment results include all
revenue and expenses, other than reporting inter-segment
provided by one segment to another.

Sino Splendid Holdings Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z =%

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION - Continued

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and

results by reportable segment:

(a) Business segments
For the year ended 31

December 2019

e MR A

7 ERE R — &
AT RS BUR A R
EEREEDN

=1

—NFT—HA=1—HIFE

DEEDZE

(a) % 7 &R

BE_Z2-NAF+-A=1+—H
ILEE

Financial
Travel Media Magazine Securities Money
Business Business Investment Lending Total
RERBER HEREER BERE B At
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$"000 HK$000
FET FET FET FET FET
Reportable segment revenue R BINEE P 2
from external customers —H&%’ﬁﬁ 1 76,792 27,510 = 3,063 107,365
Reportable segment ED R,/
profit/(loss) ( BE) 10,728 (2,536) (1,943) 468 6,717
Depreciation and HEREH
amortisation (220) (6,524) - - (6,744)
Depreciation of right-of-use ~ {FREEENE
assets (2,359) - - - (2,359)
Impairment losses WTRBEEEZ
(recognised) reversal on HEBE (E®R)
B
- loan receivables - RWRER - - - 260 260
— accounts receivable —EWER A (412) (5,091) = = (5,503)
Reportable segment assets ~ AIREDHBEE 98,603 37,446 32,267 17,059 185,375
Reportable segment AREsHat
liabilities 19,434 27,782 - 2,037 49,253
For the year ended 31 December 2018 BE-FE-NF+=ZA=+-—H
ILEFE
Financial
Travel Media Magazine Securities Money
Business Business Investment Lending Total
REREBEYR HERIER ERRE & st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000
TET TETL TET TET TET
Reportable segment revenue R EAMEE S 2
from external customers REDBEXR 71,116 21,874 - 1,527 94,517
Reportable segment REDBEF,/
profit/(loss) (B#8) 9,189 849 (8,929) 295 1,404
Interest income MEBA - 3 - = 3
Depreciation and FRFTEREH
amortisation for the year (352) (6,526) (1,000) = (7,878)
Impairment losses NTEEEEZ
(recognised) reversal on REBE(EHER)
e
— loan receivables - RWER - - - ) (7)
— accounts receivable —RUERR 445 (795) - = (350)
Reportable segment assets RENHEE 89,703 38,340 7,089 14,498 149,630
Addition to non-current EW#/ALQD BEE
segment assets NE
during the year 33 - - - 33
Reportable segment liabilities ] #5235 & & 19,899 19,616 = 1,295 40,810
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
n‘/-ﬁ 7_|- ﬁ% #ﬁ %% Mj- -LE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 B2 = F— N F+=-H=+—HILFZE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION - Continued 6. TEHEN &
(b) Reconciliation of reportable segment revenue, (b) AIRESEHE X X&
results, assets and liabilities EEREGBEZHE
2019 2018
ZE-hAFE ZET-N\HF
HK$’000 HK$°000
FHET FET
Revenue EXE
Reportable segment revenue AERE DA X 107,365 94,517
Results ES
Reportable segment profit AR & 53 8% 6,717 1,404
Unallocated corporate income Ao EEERA 18,150 -
Unallocated corporate expenses Ao ERX (18,008) (29,887)
Consolidated income/(loss) before BRETBBLATGRE
income taxation WA (FE) 6,859 (28,483)
Assets BE
Segment assets DEEE 185,375 149,630
Unallocated corporate assets ADBECEEE 52,099 73,440
Consolidated total assets REREE 237,474 223,070
Liabilities afE
Segment liabilities DEBE 49,253 40,810
Unallocated corporate liabilities AoREEEE 12,466 4,453
Consolidated total liabilities REBBRE 61,719 45,263
(c) Geographic information (c) WEEHR
The geographical location of customers is based gﬁﬂ@ﬁﬁﬁfﬁﬁﬁﬂfﬁ%zi@
on the location at which the service provided. The #h &l > 3F/;\L§b§FE’]iﬂﬁ¥1j§
geographical location of the non-current assets is based DRAEZBR KRG & 022
on the physical and operating location of the assets. 7 e
The Group’s operations and workforce are mainly ?%@Z%ij&%@ﬁf%ﬁ%
located in Singapore and Hong Kong. MM R EE

@ Sino Splendid Holdings Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2019



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION - Continued

(c)

(d)

Geographic information — Continued
The following table provides an analysis of the Group’s
revenue from external customers.

Singapore I3
Hong Kong =8

e MR A

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z =%

—NFT—HA=1—HIFE

DEBE R —1

(c) HWHEER —&
TEREBINAEEREINBREF Z
EEREDT

2019 2018
—E-hF —FT-NEF
HK$7000 HK$000
FET FET
76,792 71,116
30,573 23,401

The following table provides an analysis of the Group’s
non-current assets.

Singapore N3k
Hong Kong B

TREINAREFRRBEEZD
#r o

2019 2018
—E-hF —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$000
F#ET FHETT
5,364 378
53,197 58,302

Information about major customers
For the year ended 31 December 2019,
attributable to the Group’s largest customer accounted
for 13% (2018: 9%) of the Group’s total revenue
and aggregate revenue attributable to the five largest
customers of the Group accounted for 49% (2018:
23%) of the Group’s total revenue.

revenue

Revenue from customers individually contributing over
10% of the total revenue of the Group are as follows:

(d) iggﬁﬁﬂﬁl
HE-_ZT—h&F+=-A=+—H
HFE: ZKEIE—K%)E{&ZK%
l@%%%ﬁm%(—*—*fﬂi
9%) KREAEBRAARFMNE
XBEAMHAEBAEXTE49%
(ZE—NF:23%) °

REERMEA S B AR S EEEHB B
10% M EFRRZENT

2019 2018

—E-hF —E-N\F

HK$’000 HK$’000

TET T

Customer A EFPA N/A

13,560 5 A

Note: Mzt -

1. There were no other major customers contributed 10% or 1. BE_Z-NAF+_A="+—
more of the Group's total revenue during the year ended HIEEE BEEMFEFERFE

31 December 2019. BIARSEEAERE10% KA Lo
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z =%

E—NFF_HA=+—HIFE

7. OTHER INCOME AND OTHER NET LOSSES/ 7. Ht W AR H g8 558
IMPAIRMENT LOSSES UNDER EXPECTED RPEEEBRENX TRERS
CREDIT LOSS MODEL, NET OF REVERSAL 15 MEREE

2019 2018
—E-NEF —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
(i) Other income and other net losses (i) HtWARHMER
T
Bank interest income |ITH B WA 1 3
Dividend income from equity BRBERREANE
investments at FVTPL HMBEZRAKRE 2
B A 18,149 14,562
Other income H U A 320 571
Realised loss on disposal of ﬁghﬂfggj&iﬁz
held-for-trading investments B # BIE g8 = (2,093)
Fair value change on equity investments 555?5 SRIEARE
at FVTPL §IJ @ZJ&Z&&%Z
NREE (1,823) (5,698)
Written off of equity investments FRBER ?EHZ@/LCTE
at FVTPL HIME 2 IR A% & 88 - (20,000)
Written off of intangible assets B E = W - (2,667)
16,647 (15,322)
(ii) Impairment losses under expected (i) HHEEBEEEXT
credit loss model, net of reversal RWEEE MR
Impairment losses (recognised)/ NT&EBEESZRE
reversal on: Eig (B ER)
g 1ok
— accounts receivable — FE U BR 3K (5,503) (795)
— loan receivables —REUWE R 260 7)
(5,243) (802)
8. FINANCE COSTS 8. MERE
2019 2018
—E-NEF —E-N\F
HK$000 HK$’000
FET FET
Interest on lease liabilities HEBEZNE 143 -
143 _

@ Sino Splendid Holdings Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e IR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #ZE=F—NF+=HA=+—HIFE

9. INCOME TAX EXPENSES 9. FiERiBEX
2019 2018
=EBE-hAFE E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET T
Current tax — Hong Kong BIBATRIE - BB (39) (261)
Current tax — Singapore BN EA R 7B — F N3 (1,817) (1,561)
Tax provision (note c) MIARHE (Hitc) (8,745) —
Deferred tax BT IR 1,077 1,680
(9,524) (142)
(a) On 21 March 2018, the Hong Kong Legislative Council (@ RZTE-—NF=A=+—H &
passed The Inland Revenue (Amendment) (No. 7) Bill BIEERIB CQ017F MK (&
2017 (the “Bill”) which introduces the two-tiered 1) (B7SR)IEHAIEZRY ([1&EFI
profits tax rates regime. Under the two-tiered profits BEE]) 5| ANSH MRS 1R
tax rates regime, the first HK$2 million of profits of the BREHMASG cEREEE
qualifying group entity will be taxed at 8.25%, and BHE2E &8 708 M §1R8.25%
profits above HK$2 million will be taxed at 16.5%. MEED - BE2AEE T DM
The Group’s subsidiaries in Hong Kong did not qualify i M 2 16.5% BT 28 & B R
for the two-tiered profits tax rates regime. Accordingly, EEZHMBRARTHAENETHM
Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the Al o B b - BB NS B IR A5
estimated assessable profit (2018: 16.5%). ERTEMNENT16.5%THE (ZF
—N\F:16.5%) °
(b) The calculation of current tax of the Group’s (b)y AEBERFT I 2 KB R a A ED
subsidiaries in Singapore is based on a prevailing BB DRBRITRAREI7%
corporate tax rate of 17% (2018: 17%). (ZE—N\F:17%)a &
PEERRRERBRLT —E-NEFRH @



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR M A

For the year ended 31 December 2019 B2 = F— N F+=-H=+—HILFZE

9. INCOME TAX EXPENSES - Continued

(c)

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group
received enquiry letters from the Hong Kong Inland
Revenue Department (the “HKIRD”) in relation to the
tax affairs of the Group's travel media operation, which
is principally operated in Singapore, including but not
limited to the operating model and the related source
of income (“Tax Affairs”). The Company has filed an
objection to the HKIRD in relation to the Tax Affairs
and purchased tax reserve certificates amounting to
approximately HK$2,465,000 as at 31 December 2019.

The Tax Affairs might lead to additional tax being
charged on profits from the Group’s Singapore
subsidiary in respect of the source of income as
concerned that have not been previously included in
the scope of charge for Hong Kong Profits Tax. Based
on the legal and other professional advice that the
Company has sought, provision of taxation in relation
to the Tax Affairs of approximately HK$8,745,000 has
been made in the consolidated financial statements.

The income tax expenses for the year can be reconciled
to the profit/(loss) before taxation per the consolidated

9. RIBEHMAX—&

(c)

BHE-_ZT—NF+=ZA=+—
BIEFE TEEEEFENE
R(TEAMBBI)ERK K
AEBAAEEEERFIMNELE
WIKBEEBEBONBEE &
FEABEREERN REBKRA
RKRBR(IBBEER]) - ARFIB
MEEEMEABRBRREITR
HERKBETREMNAF R
—NEFE+ZA=+—HSBHNA
2,465,000/ 7T

S EEEERAYEaAEE
#7003 B BB~ B P 8 i FI Bt ST R
WARFFABRBHNEGEHRBUEE A
B I ZROJR T 4 KB AN B IR o
ERARAIFRGAEREEREM
BEXER EREGEEUBWMER
RABBKEEEENHIERED
8,745,000/ JC °

AEEZMERAX RGBS RE
2 H R 2 FRBLATE ], (B1R)

statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income HERWAT -
as follows:
2019 2018
—F-hE ZFTN\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHETT TFHET
Profit/(loss) before tax BRFLRTE T (EE) 6,859 (28,483)
Tax calculated at Singapore flat corporate  IZ¥T I 5 — A AL E17%
tax rate of 17% (2017: 17%) —E—EF17%)
FFE IR 1,166 (4,842)
Effect of different tax rate of operation in ~ BHAEEBF TR X 2
Hong Kong 2 (184) 188
Tax effect of revenue not taxable for tax BABMERB L
purposes MG E 8 (2,995) (1,104)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for TR BEFLHE B 89 H1R 2
tax purposes Fx MGz e 2,105 5,121
Tax effect of deductible temporary AERATHREREZE 2
differences not recognised Mg & 687 779
Tax provision 7ot T8 1 o5 8,745 =
Income tax expenses PS8 7 X 9,524 142
@ Sino Splendid Holdings Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2019



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e IR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #ZE=F—NF+=HA=+—HIFE

10. FREE
FABEENR (GtA) TH&IE:

10.LOSS FOR THE YEAR

Loss for the year is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

(a) Staff costs (@ BIRA
2019 2018
—E-NF —E-N\F
HK$000 HK$’000
FHET FHET
Staff costs (including directors’ BIXNA(BREEMS)
emoluments)
— Salaries, wages and other benefits —EH - FHe REMER 21,967 25,344
— Retirement benefits scheme —RARBEH G EIH K
contributions 1,733 2,816
Total staff costs 88 TR K 23,700 28,160
(b) Other items (b) HfttIHE
2019 2018
—E-AF ZZ-N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Amortisation of intangible assets B & E#H 6,524 7,526
Auditor’s remuneration A% BEM % B 460 440
Depreciation of property, plant and ME - BBELREBITE
equipment 589 721
Depreciation of right-of-use assets CREEENE 2,359 =
Net foreign exchange (gain)/loss R (W) BEFHE (310) 764
Minimum lease payment for FERDEAKREREZ
leases previously classified HENXEBENK
as operating leases - 2,846
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2019 B2 = F— N F+=-H=+—HILFZE

11. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS

Directors” emoluments disclosed pursuant to section 383(i)
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the
Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of
Directors) Regulation are as follows:

Year ended 31 December 2019

11.EEME
BEEE (QFHEH) F383(3) K& &
(RRI(BEEENEZERHAM) &
2EWEMEEM ST

BE-®-AE+=A=+-

HIEFE
Salaries, Retirement
allowances benefits
and benefits Directors’ scheme
in kind fees contributions Total
e RER ‘ BARER
EWMR& Exne B et
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
FET FET FET FET
Executive directors: HITEE:
Mr. Chow Chi Wa AEELEE 720 120 18 858
Mr. Yang Xingan BRZELE - 240 - 240
Mr. Wang Tao IFRALE - 120 - 120
720 480 18 1,218
Independent non-executive B HHTEE
directors:
Ms. Wang Qingling (Note 1) ~ TB¥ &+ (Kfit1) - 110 - 110
Ms. Yang Shuyan BB L - 120 - 120
Ms. Lee Yim Wah TWELLT = 120 = 120
- 350 - 350
720 830 18 1,568
@ Sino Splendid Holdings Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2019



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e IR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #ZE=F—NF+=HA=+—HIFE

11. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS - Continued
Year ended 31 December 2018

MNEEMES -8
BE-_Z2—N\E+=-/A=+—

HIEFE
Salaries, Retirement
allowances benefits
and benefits scheme
in kind Directors’ fees contributigns Total
e EUK N iR AR AR \
EMHM = ek FHEI Bt
HK$000 HK$’000 HK$000 HK$000
FHET T T FHET
Executive directors: HITESE:
Mr. Chow Chi Wa BERE L E 720 120 18 858
Mr. Yang Xingan BRZEE - 240 - 240
Mr. Wang Tao IEEE - 120 - 120
720 480 18 1,218
Independent non-executive B HEHTTEE
directors:
Mr. Zhang Xiaoguang (Note 2) SRBENJC4 (f17t2) - 110 - 110
Ms. Yang Shuyan BREL L - 120 - 120
Ms. Lee Yim Wah TWMELT = 120 - 120
- 350 - 350
720 830 18 1,568
Note: (1) Ms. Wang Qingling was appointed as independent Ma: (1) EERREIR-_ZF-N\F
non-executive director on 28 December 2018. +— A+ N\BEZTXAEE
VIEBMITEE
(2)  Mr. Zhang Xiaoguang was deceased an independent 2) REXEENR_Z—N\F

non executive director on 28 December 2018.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2019 B2 = F— N F+=-H=+—HILFZE

11. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS - Continued

Year ended 31 December 2018 — Continued

During both years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018,
no emoluments were paid by the Group to the Directors,
as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group as
compensation for loss of office.

There was no arrangement under which a director waived or
agreed to waive any remuneration during the year. During
the years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018, no share
option of the Company was granted to a director in respect
of his services provided to the Group under a share option
scheme of the Company.

Included in the directors’ emoluments disclosed above,
directors Mr. Chow Chi Wa of the Company receive
emoluments from the Company, amounting to HK$720,000
(2018: HK$720,000), part of which is in respect of
his services to the Company and its subsidiaries. No
apportionment has been made as the Directors consider that
it is impracticable to apportion this amount between their
services to the group and their services to the Company.

@ Sino Splendid Holdings Limited

11.EEZME &

E-E2-\F+ZA=+-—
RIEFE-&
REBEE-ZF-NFR-_FT-N\F+=
A=t —HIMEFE NEEHE
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ABZ BB AE SRR (E

REABEESHEXRERELM
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RZZE-NF+_A=+—HLEHFE
HiME - M B ARIE A A 2 B AT 8
LE =R AR B R H 2 AR R A
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EXFHEBECESEMaRRIEARA
EFERATELEBAQTWRZBE
720,000/ 7T ( =& — /L4 : 720,000
BL) EREs>FREREIRA R
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AR ERERASBRERS
HFERAARIRERE 2EETS
EETER W EEL DA

ANNUAL REPORT 2019



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e IR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #ZE=F—NF+=HA=+—HIFE

12. INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS 12. 5% B A =

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in AEBLEGRRFHALEST B85
the Group, one (2018: one) director’s emoluments were —H(ZE—N\F:—RB)EE 2N
included. The emoluments of the four (2018: four) highest T HEB(ZE-N\F: OA) &S F
paid individuals were as follows: AL Z BT
2019 2018
“E-AE —FT-N\F
HK$000 HK$’000
FET FET
Salaries and other benefits Fe LEMETR 4,607 4,878
Retirement benefits scheme contributions 3B K18 F| 51 2| 4 7% 457 307
5,064 5,185
The emoluments of the above individuals with the highest FiisxsFMALZBME N F T8
emoluments are within the following bands: Al :
2019 2018
ZE-hF —E-N\F
No. of No. of
individuals individuals
AE A E
HK$NIL to HK$1,000,000 T8 L E1,000,000/8 7T 1 1
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 8 TE
1,500,000/% 7T - 2
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 L&
2,000,000 7T 2 -
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 L2
2,500,000/ 7T 1 1
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,500,001 TE

3,000,000/ 7T = =

4 4

During both years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018, no HE_Z-NAEFR_ZE-—NF+_H
emoluments were paid by the Group to the five highest paid =T —BIEMEFE AEEHER
individuals, as an inducement to join or upon joining the EE&ESFMALINMESIER/MA
Group as compensation for loss of office. REE I AR R R BB
The remuneration of one (2018: one) senior management — B (ZE—NF:—B)SREEE
personnel has been disclosed in the above table of the five ABZEFEHER EXABRARSH
highest paid individuals. AL 2 RIBABEE -

PEERRRERARLF “E-NFFRH @



13.

14.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z =%

DIVIDEND
No dividend was paid or proposed by the Company during
the year ended 31 December 2019 nor has any dividend

been purposed since the end of the reporting period (2018:
Nil).

LOSS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic loss per share attributable to
the owners of the Company is based on the following data:

13.

14.

—ANF+—A=F—HUFE

iz 2.
ARBARBE_ZT—-NLEFE+_-H
=t BLEFEBSEIRMNSHEIKRK
B B A HI R DA SR IR 48 B IR ({7 A
B(ZE-NF &) -

BRER
RAFFHEAEESREREER
T B E

2019 2018
—B-hE —T-N\F
HK$000 HK$’000
FET FET
Loss per share BREER
Loss for the purpose of computation of A ESREABERZER
basic loss per share (2,665) (28,625)
2019 2018
—E-hF —N\F
‘000 ‘000
TR T
Number of shares R & B
Weighted average number of ordinary A EERERERZ
shares in issue for the purpose of B BT EBRINEF S8
basic loss per share (Note) (K1a%) 385,821 385,821
Note: Wiat -
No diluted loss per share has been presented because there was HREBZ-_T-NEEZE-\F+=A

no potential dilutive ordinary share in issue for the years ended
31 December 2019 and 2018.

There were no outstanding share options as at 31 December 2019
and 2018.

Sino Splendid Holdings Limited

_Jr Elitirlﬂﬁﬁfﬂz e
BRI EZSGREEEE-

RZE-—NEFR_ZE—-NF+ZA=+—
B #ESRITEZERE-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e IR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #ZE=F—NF+=HA=+—HIFE

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15. % - BB RZHE

Computer

Leasehold  Furniture and Office equipment and
improvement fixture equipment software  Motor vehicles Total

ERRE
HEMEEE - RARKE BOERE k&M AE 5t
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
FET FET FET FET FET FET

COSsT BA

At 1 January 2018 W-EB-N\%¥-A—-AH 1,152 638 804 1,329 809 4732
Exchange realignments i 5 3% (19) (2) (36) (188) = (245)
Additions NE - - 25 8 - 33
Disposals HE = = = (11) = (11)

At 31 December 2018 and  R=F—\F+=-A=+—8

1 January 2019 RZF-NE-A—H 1,133 636 793 1,138 809 4,509
Exchange realignments B R 8 1 3 57 = 69
At 31 December 2019 RZZE-NF+ZR=+—-H 1,141 637 796 1,195 809 4,578

Accumulated depreciation ~ Rt &

At 1 January 2018 RZE-N\F—A—H 1,152 220 506 626 491 2,995
Exchange realignments BN AE 19 2) (35 (178) A (234)
Provided during the year FREE - 109 101 352 159 721
Eliminated on disposals HEREH - = = 3) - 3)

At 31 December 2018 and  R=-ZE—\F+-A=+—-H

1 January 2019 E=F-NE—-A—A 1,133 327 572 797 650 3,479
Exchange realignments X 8 1 3 47 - 59
Provided during the year ~ FRE - 109 99 222 159 589
At 31 December 2019 RZE-NEF+ZRA=+—A 1,141 437 674 1,066 809 4,127
Carrying values REE
At 31 December 2019 RZZE-NF+ZR=+—H = 200 122 129 = 451
At 31 December 2018 RZE-NE+ZA=+—H = 309 221 341 159 1,030

PEERRBERARLT “E-NFFRH @



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR M A

For the year ended 31 December 2019 B2 = F— N F+=-H=+—HILFZE

equipment for its operations. Lease contracts are entered
into for fixed term of 2 to 3 years, but may have extension
and termination options. Certain leases of equipment were
accounted for as finance leases during the year ended
31 December 2018 and carried interest ranged from 1.95%
to 4.70%. Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis
and contain a wide range of different terms and conditions.
In determining the lease term and assessing the length of the
non-cancellable period, the Group applies the definition of
a contract and determines the period for which the contract
is enforceable.

@ Sino Splendid Holdings Limited

16. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSET lo. EREEE
Leased Office
properties equipment Total
HEWH WARE #at
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TrET TET TrET
As at 1 January 2019 R=ZZE-NAE—HA—H
Carrying amount REE = = =
As at 31 December 2019 R=ZFB-AF+=A=+—H
Carrying amount REE 8,541 333 8,874
Exchange realignment ME 5 H 49 15 64
8,590 348 8,938
For the year ended BE-Z-1F
31 December 2019 TZA=t+—-HLEFE
Depreciation charge WEEH (2,292) (67) (2,359)
Exchange realignment ME 5 & (14) 3) (17)
(2,306) (70) (2,376)
As at 31 December 2019 —NWF+-A=+—8 6,284 278 6,562
Expense relating to short-term FREIMEE KR BRTE B R E A
leases and other leases with EBMEREERNF 165
lease terms end within ER®ZI12EA R& LD
12 months of the date of HihHEEBER
initial application of HKFRS 16 688
Total cash outflow for leases HERSRHESE 2,342
Additions to right-of-use assets £ Fl 4 & EE 4% /i 727
For both years, the Group leases various offices and office HMMEFE AEEHREL @R A ZE Lilt

NRERIEFEFEHZE - HEA KR

E3FMECHETZ EAREE
REREREZE

&I

EEE -ATR

H‘H

—NE+-A=+— Eiﬁ&?mﬁéﬁﬂf—i
)\EE A 1%1.95% Z 4. 70°/oa’ﬁlJ¥E+,%\°%ﬂ

ERFIEANEEER TEESETR
{ R AGAE - mﬁmfﬁ,ﬁﬂﬁpﬂaTﬂ%ﬁz%
R AEBEERAAYNTELETS
BT T HAR -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e IR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #ZE=F—NF+=HA=+—HIFE

17. GOODWILL 17. 88
(a) Financial Magazine Business (@ MEMIRHK

Goodwill acquired in a business combination is
allocated, at acquisition, to the CGU that is expected
to benefit from that business combination. The carrying
amount of goodwill of approximately HK$5,161,000
as at 31 December 2019 (2018: HK$5,161,000) was
related to financial magazine business, as further
explained below.

REBKEHKEZEETTNIKE
RO EEHABNZEBLEHTE
REZHESEABEMN-BER -
E-hF+-_A=+—EBENEE
B #5,161,0008 7T (=ZF — \
F:5,161,0007% Jr ) B2 B A€ 5 &5
¥BE0 FBE—FEAmT -

2019 2018
=E-hF E-)N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FETT TET

Cost B AR
At beginning of the year F ) 5,161 5,161
Accumulated impairment losses ZERERBRE - =
Net book value at end of the year FRAREFE 5,161 5,161

As at 31 December 2019 and 31 December 2018,
goodwill of approximately HK$5,161,000 was arising
from the acquisition of Able Professional Enterprises
Limited and its subsidiary (the “Able Group”) in
2016. At each reporting date, goodwill is subject to
impairment testing.

The recoverable amount of the CGU in relation to the
financial magazine business has been determined using
cash flow projections to calculate value in use based
on estimates and financial budgets approved by the
Directors. These projections cover a five-year period,
and have been discounted using a pre-tax discount rate
of 12% (2018: 13%).

HESRH B R AR

RZE—NhF+ZA=+—H
E=ZF—-N\F+ZA=+—8"
495,161,000 TR B R =
T — NF U B Able Professional
Enterprises Limited & E [ & 2 7]
([Able &£ E]) - R EWREBE-
R B E TR E A -

ERMKEFEBNReCEAS
R E £ EERIEZEEATI
/EZ{$Q+&51.EQTEE%|JFHIE§Z//Ib
EEAHETREEEE - %F
FERRERFHE EFHA12%
(ZZE—NF:13%) ZHBATELIR
BHIR o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2019 B2 = F— N F+=-H=+—HILFZE

17. GOODWILL - Continued

(@)

(b)

Financial Magazine Business — Continued

All of the assumptions and estimations involved in
the preparation of the cash flow projection including
budgeted gross margin, discount rate and growth rate
which were determined by the Directors of the Group
based on their experience and expectation for future
market development.

The Directors believe that any reasonably possible
change in the key assumptions on which the
recoverable amount is based would not cause the
carrying amount of the unit to exceed the aggregate
recoverable amount of the CGU.

Travel Media Business

Impairment Testing

For the purposes of impairment testing, the following
goodwill has been allocated to Travel Media Business
and included in reserves as the acquisition of operation
were made prior to 1 January 2005 (note 3(d)).

IR R RS

Travel Media Business and included
in reserves

17. B5E-&

(@)

(b)

AFARER

MEMERE-&
MEBASRERBML R ZMBER
REGE (BREBEENX B
BERREER)VHAESEES
REEEREHREMEER
BHMETE

EEMRE JREBEMKEE
EREZEMNABAILESH TS
BYRReELEN 2 REEBB
HERRSEL B2 EEES
B e

hik 32 2% 58 3R %%

8L 188 &5

REREME BREHEE
R-_TThFE—F—-HZAER
(M EE3(d) " ATEHERSES
IR RE T WAt AREEA -

2019 2018
—®-nE ZEF-N\F
HK$000 HK$000
FHT FHET
31,193 31,193

The recoverable amount of this CGU has been
determined based on a value in use calculation.
That calculation uses cash flow projections based
on financial budgets approved by the management
covering a five-year period, and a discount rate of 13%.
Cash flows beyond the five-year period are extrapolated
using growth rates of 3%. These growth rates are based
on the relevant industry growth forecasts and do not
exceed the average long-term growth rates for the
relevant industries. Another key assumption for the
value in use calculation is the budgeted gross margins,
which are determined based on the CGU’s past
performance and the management’s expectations for
the market development. Management believes that any
reasonably possible change in any of these assumptions
would not cause the aggregate carrying amount of the
CGU to exceed the aggregate recoverable amount of
this CGU.

@ Sino Splendid Holdings Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e IR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #ZE=F—NF+=HA=+—HIFE

Intangible assets with net book value of HK$6,524,000 as
at 31 December 2018 represent contract backlog arising
from the acquisition of Able Group during the year ended
31 December 2017. The amount of contract backlog was
fully amortised during the year ended 31 December 2019.

Domain name

On 21 September 2016, Sino Impact Group Limited (“Sino
Impact”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, as
the purchaser entered into an agreement with Grand Pointer
Limited (“Grand Pointer”) to acquire the domain name of
“Ecarcycle.com” at a cash consideration of HK$5,000,000.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the domain
name of “Ecarcycle.com” failed to meet expected income.
Accordingly, the Company decided not to further invest
additional resources for development of domain name.
As such, the board decided to provide full write off of the
domain name.

RESRRE R AR

18. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 1. B EE
Contract
backlog Domain name Total
REREH HEFE et
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FEIT
COST 2%
At 1 January 2018, R—_ZE—N\FE—H—H"
31 December 2018 and —2-NE+ZA=+—8XK
31 December 2019 —E-hF+=ZA=+—H 22,839 5,000 27,839
Accumulated amortisation -G §
At 1 January 2018 R=—ZF—N\&F—H—H 9,789 1,333 11,122
Charge for the year FAZH 6,526 1,000 7,526
Written off 58 — 2,667 2,667
At 31 December 2018 and R—E—N\EFE+-_A=+—H8K
1 January 2019 —T-hE—H—H 16,315 5,000 21,315
Charge for the year FALH 6,524 = 6,524
At 31 December 2019 RZE—NE+=ZA=+—8H 22,839 5,000 27,839
Net book value REFE
At 31 December 2019 R—E—h&E+=-A=+—H = = =
At 31 December 2018 RZTE—-N\F+=—_A=+—H 6,524 = 6,524
Financial Magazine Business MRBEER

RZE—N\F+-_A=+—HEE%
186,524,000/ 7T 0 & 2 & EE 38 1A &L
E-E—+E+ZA=+—BILEE
WEAble EEFEAMARTHEL -
AEXRAHNEBEERBEE-_ZT— A
FH+_A=1+— Lt FEBEE-

mEyea
RZTE—RNENAZ+—H FRAF
Z 2 & W& QB Sino Impact Group
Limited ([Sino Impact]) (fEAE
75 ) B2 Grand Pointer Limited ([ Grand
Pointer ) AT M W& LA BE 48 £ F
& [Ecarcycle.com ] - R&KE A
5,000,000/% JT °

BE_ T \F+_HA=+—HLF
€ - # £ ¥ & [Ecarcycle.com | KR#E
FIEHRA B ARFRETE
E—TRAEMERERZSE LT
BBt EFETGRT2EMTHE L

NVAVAN
& o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR M A

For the year ended 31 December 2019 B2 = F— N F+=-H=+—HILFZE

19. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

19. RMB AR 2 &

ARREEZMBAR ZFFBAOT:

Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as

follows:

Name of subsidiary

MELAEE

TTG Global Limited
BRREEEERAT

TTG Asia Media Pte. Ltd

TTG Asia Media Pte. Ltd

Netplus Media Limited
ERERERAR
Sino Impact Group Limited

Sino Impact Group Limited

Nation Wealth Limited
HEARAA

Newpalm (China)
Information Technology
Co. Ltd.

£PER (PE)ERRER
BRAF

Place of
incorporation/
registration and
operations
HMA /R
REEHEY

HK
BR

Singapore

R

BVI
RBELHS
HK

BE

PRC

T

Particulars of issued and

paid up capital
BRATRARREZFE

2019 2018
“E-NE —-0F

100 ordinary shares

1008 & A i

100,000 ordinary
shares of SGD1 each

10,0008 5 RE &1
Fmsn e EER

100 ordinary shares
100REER

1 ordinary share of
US$1 each

IESRERIXRZ
BER

1 ordinary shares

IREBR

Registered capital
RMBS,400,000

TMEX
AR ¥5,400,0007

100 ordinary shares
100/ & &R

100,000 ordinary
shares of SGD1 each

100,000 R AE1
KT LR

100 ordinary shares
10005 & &R

1 ordinary share of
US$1 each

1RERARIZTZ
LER

1 ordinary shares
1RERR

Registered capital
RMBS5,400,000

HREL
ARE5,400,0007

Proportion ownership interest

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at
the end of the year.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Group which, in
the opinion of the directors, principally affected the results
or assets of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries
would, in the opinion of the directors, result in particulars
of excessive length.

@ Sino Splendid Holdings Limited

held by the Company
LN PAS S 47
Directly Indirectly
13 S
2019 2018 2019 2018
Z8-0E “E-0\F ZB-nE —E)\F
% % % %
100% 100% - =
100% 100% - -
- = 100% 100%
- = 100% 100%
- = 100% 100%
- - 100% 100%
100% 100% - -
100% 100% - =
- = 100% 100%
- - 100% 100%
90% 90% 90% 90%
90% 90% 90% 90%

Principal activities

IRRR

Investment holdings

RARK

Provision of advertising and
event organising services
and magazine

RERSRBREDRY
AR i S

Provision of advertising
agency service

REBERERK
Investment in securities
EHRE

Money lending

g

Dormant

Tag

REFEREENB QR BETEMES

B

EREIESRREHAREREN

EEBRIBRE

PES LT T

Al-BEEARRHEMHERARZHF
EREEFEBN TR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z =%

20. EQUITY INVESTMENT AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS (“FVTPL”)

Unlisted securities, at fair value FEEMESF BA
— Equity interest in private equity funds

TN

20. BBEZREQAALEBEIE )( [ &

e MR A

—NFT—HA=1—HIFE

BEBRRQAEIE]
BRAERE

o

AR EFIE
—RALERAESZ

2019 2018
—E-hF —E-N\F
HK$7000 HK$000
FET FEIT
46,387 45,965

Note:

The Group has invested in two (2018: Two) private equity funds as
a limited partner:

(@) New Horizon Capital, L.P. (New Horizon) is a Cayman Islands
exempted limited partnership formed in April 2007 and
commenced operations in May 2007. New Horizon makes
direct and indirect investments in state owned enterprises
in the PRC, with a focus on the consumer products, health
care, alternative energy, manufacturing industries and other
entities with strong fundamentals and high growth rate. As at
31 December 2019, the investment portfolio of New Horizon
were entities listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange which
accounted for approximately 90.37% of the net assets value
of New Horizon.

(b) Whiz is a limited partnership. It supports business
development activities of portfolio companies of Whiz Asia
Evolution Fund which targets Japanese companies with world
class proprietary technology and processes with the potential
for overseas expansion. As at 31 December 2019, the
investments portfolio of Whiz were entities listed on the Tokyo
Stock Exchange which accounted for approximately 90.6% of
the net assets value of Whiz.

HESRH B R AR

REERENME (=T —/\F: BE)
BERAESER/RBEREEFEREAN:

(@) New Horizon Capital, L.P. (New
Horizon) H R =& j’ti@ﬂﬁki
LHREHEEREEREE QA
TR —ZEZE+FHAFIBES - New
Horizonﬁk&?ﬁ&&ﬁqjlﬁ
TtE EINHBER BEERE.
BRER HEXURHEMBERE
BEASNEREZEB RZZ—NF
+=-HA=+4+—H " New Horizon #J3%
BHAERERINEBELRRZIFIETH
EEE - ({fNew Horizon B E FEMA
90.37% °

by Whizli—REREFEEZ LR H
fiﬁwhiz Asia Evolution Fundi%%&
HERNRZEBEREE HE AR
ﬁﬁﬁ%&gﬂﬁmlﬂﬁ/gﬁﬁﬁ
BIMERZBARRAB -RZF—N&F
+=—A=+—H Whiz®ix&E48E-E
BERREFARSAETHNERE (h
Whiz & & FE /I £990.6% °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2019 B2 = F— N F+=-H=+—HILFZE
21.ACCOUNTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 21. B ER X K& H fth B W FK IR
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
HK$000 HK$000
FET FET
Accounts receivable (Note(a)) FEUBR ZX (BfsE(a)) 43,919 32,662
Deposits and prepayments and Ee BENHRER
other receivables (Note(b)) H b pE W SR TE (M5 (b)) 9,509 9,902
53,428 42,564
(a) Accounts receivable (a) FEUWERFK
2019 2018
—E-hEF —ZE-N\F
HK$7000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Accounts receivable JiE UK BR 3R 56,480 39,701
Less: Allowance for credit losses B EEEEEE (12,561) (7,039)
43,919 32,662

The Group’s trading terms with its customers are mainly
on credit. The credit period is generally for a period of
one month to three months, extending up to six months
for major customers. The Group seeks to maintain strict
control over its outstanding accounts receivable and has
a credit control policy to minimise credit risk. Overdue
balances are reviewed regularly by management. The
Group has provided impairment losses on accounts
receivable based on experience of collecting payments.

@ Sino Splendid Holdings Limited

AEBEFEFPETZRHUEERR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e IR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #ZE=F—NF+=HA=+—HIFE

21. ACCOUNTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES - 21. EWBRF R H b FE U 738 —
Continued =]

(@) Accounts receivable - Continued

The following is an aged analysis of accounts receivable
net of allowance for credit losses presented based on
the invoice date at the end of the reporting period:

(a) EWRERER—&

REZZAMRBEHRAZ5
EMBREEBRERGZEBEREX
ZEREAMAT

2019 2018

—E-hEF —EF-N\F

HK$000 HK$’000

T T

Within 90 days 90H A 18,753 14,531
91-120 days 91-120H 3,411 1,472
121-180 days 121-180H 2,142 3,789
Over 180 days and within one year H#iB180H BN —F A 19,613 12,870
43,919 32,662

Before accepting any new customer, the Group uses
an evaluation scoring system to assess the potential
customer’s credit quality and defines credit limits
by each customer. Limits and evaluation attributed
to customers are reviewed regularly by senior
management based on experience of collecting
payments. As at 31 December 2019, included in the
Group’s accounts receivable balance were debtors
with aggregate carrying amount of HK$6,970,000
(2018: HK$5,639,000) which were neither past due nor
impaired.

Accounts receivable that were neither past due nor
impaired relate to a wide range of customers for
whom there was no recent history of default. Accounts
receivable that were past due but not impaired relate
to a number of customers that have a good track record
with the Group. Based on the past experience, the
management estimated that the carrying amounts may
be recovered.

HESRH B R AR

EEWNERFEE 2 A5 E
FRIRERGUTILEBERR
ZEEEEURBERFEE
RE -=mREEEREBEAEZK
B THIBESEFERAZR
BRI - R_E—NF+_A
=—+—H8 ' ER@E4%1E 46,970,000
BT (ZZF—/)\F :5,639,000%
T Z BB ALREE 2 EKER
REH ERBHINARBE-

7R 380 B T AROR (B 2 e AR 5K 5 B
REWEAMRACHEZIEFPE
7 - O B BB KRB Z B MR X
MELZHARBENERLERLYT
MEFAR-REBEBELER &
EREMHRmERN D -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2019 B2 = F— N F+=-H=+—HILFZE

21. ACCOUNTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES - 21. BEUWRBR A H b FE U FR3E —
Continued &

(a) EWNERF — &
EREBERBEZ ERERERZE

(a) Accounts receivable — Continued
Aging of accounts receivable which were past due but

(b)

@ Sino Splendid Holdings Limited

not impaired:

A .
R

2019 2018
—E-hF —T-NF

HK$000 HK$000

FET FET

Within 90 days 90H A 9,676 9,774
91-120 days 91-120H 5,296 4,378
121-180 days 121-180H 6,351 5,676
Over 180 days #83iE180H 618 7,195
21,941 27,023

Movement in the loss allowance account in respect of

FR FRRBKERNEBREMSG

accounts receivable during the year is as follow: FReEHMT:
2019 2018
—E-hEF —ZT-N\F
HK$7000 HK$’000
FHETT TET
Balance at beginning of the year F Kk (7,039) (6,689)
Bad debt reverse ERERB - 389
Expected credit loss HHEEEE (5,503) (795)
Exchange realignment ME 5 7 B (19) 56
Balance at end of the year F R aE 4 (12,561) (7,039)

Included in deposits, prepayments and other receivables
was approximately HK$2,465,000 of tax reserve
certificate in relation to the Tax Affairs as disclosed in
note 9 to the consolidated financial statements.

(b)y BEEHRIEEE 42,465,000/
THEBREFTARS BANZKER
EMERZRE FBEEERES

BA TS #RR M 319 ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR A

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #ZE=F—NF+=HA=+—HIFE

22.LOAN RECEIVABLES

The Group's loan receivables arose from the money lending
business.

Loan receivables bear interest, and with credit periods,
mutually agreed between the contracting parties. Each
customer has a credit limit. Overdue balances are reviewed
regularly and handled closely by senior management.

22. B E =

AEEZREERAREREEL -

RWER 2 ME REEHHRFTNES
ARBE BEEFHEREERS
BHERASREEBREHNBEELR
F B 3 o

2019 2018
—E-NF —E-N\F
HK$000 HK$000
FET FHEIT
Loan to customer BEYFREFHNER 13,177 13,177
Accrued interest receivable & 5T IE R B 1,325 1,825
14,502 15,002
Impairment allowance BB (267) (527)
14,235 14,475

Analysed as: PRIk
Current assets mEEE 14,235 14,475

Loan receivables of approximately HK$14,235,000 (2018:
HK$14,475,000) that were neither past due nor impaired
related to debtors for whom there is no recent history of
default.

HESRH B R AR

BEAGBTEREZEKE R
#914,235,0008 L (=& — )\ F:
14,475,000/ 7T ) Jb B3 N0 £ 31 8 32 49
AERMEFABR-
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23.

24.

25.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2019 B2 = F— N F+=-H=+—HILFZE

HELD FOR TRADING INVESTMENTS 23.
Equity securities, at market value Listed MREE LT ZRARE S

in Hong Kong RMIE

BEEERE
2019 2018
—E-hEF —T-N\F
HK$7000 HKS$ 000
FHETT FET
5,196 7,019

These investments are classified as financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss. The fair values of all equity
securities are based on their current bid prices in active
market, and they are categorised within level 1 of fair value
hierarchy. The details of fair value measurement are set out
in Note 30.

CASH AND BANK BALANCES

Bank balances and cash of the Group comprise cash held
by the Group. As at 31 December 2019, bank balances and
cash amounting to HK$57,999,000 and HK$40,209,000
were denominated in United States dollars and Singapore
dollars, respectively (2018: HK$44,368,000 and
HK$37,389,000 denominated in United States dollars and
Singapore dollars respectively).

24.

HRAREFBERBEEBERERERANE
HEZERMEE-MBERAESFZA
AREDEERERT SN E R RE
B YDBELAEBERF KA
REFEZFBHRHEE30 -

RERBITER
AEBZHERITEHBRRESBER
EEFEBAZR2 - RN_FT—NF
+-A=+—8B BILEHBLES
57,999,000 7T 540,209,000/ 7T 7
AIAETT RFME T E(ZF—N
F 144,368,000/ 7T 37,389,000/%
TR BIAETT RFT M ITEHE) ©

ACCOUNTS AND OTHER PAYABLES 25. B A AR R % HL At FE A5 7RIH
2019 2018
—B-NE AL
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#ET FHETT
Accounts payable (Note(a)) FERTRR R (BHEE(a)) 2,245 2,498
Accrued expense JEET R X 30,575 24,538
Other payables H b fE < 5RIE 7,162 5,937
Contract liabilities AHEaE 4,181 9,597
44,163 42,570

Sino Splendid Holdings Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR A

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #ZE=F—NF+=HA=+—HIFE

25. ACCOUNTS AND OTHER PAYABLES -
Continued

a) Accounts payable

The following is an aged analysis of accounts payable
presented based on the invoice date at the end of the
reporting period:

o]

a) EFERX

2&%@%%&E@Eﬁﬁﬁ—

REZEZAMRBEHRMZ7
RN ZREDMTANT

2019 2018

—E-NE == \&

HK$000 HK$'000

FETT FHET

Within 90 days 908 & 2,243 2,249
91-120 days 91-120H 2 75
121-180 days 121-180H - 5
Over 180 days HEiE180H - 169
2,245 2,498

The credit period on purchase is generally 1.5 to 3
months. The Group has financial risk management
policies in place to ensure that all payables are paid
within the credit time frame.

b) Contract liabilities

BEZEEH —RR/1I5E3E
Ao RE BRI % R R E R R
RABRABERNRAREEHN

PR ASZAT e
by EHAE

Movements in contract liabilities BB EEE)
2019 2018
—E-NEF —E-N\F
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FET
Balance at 1 January R—RA—HzZ#&&% 9,597 1,258
Decrease in contract liabilities as a result AL EBEREARFER
of recognising revenue during the year TR = (5,419) (8,339)
Increase in contract liabilities as a result of & 48 & A F A UER
receiving sales deposits and investment HERS RIREE M
during the year = 16,678
Balance at 31 December R+ A=1+—RH2&#% 4,178 9,597
Note: When the Group receives a payment in advance before BiEE - e AR B R AR 7% 2 AT R B

rendering of service, this will give rise to contract
liabilities at the start of a contract unit the revenue
recognised on the relevant contract exceeds the
amount of deposit.

HESRH B R AR

K AHNRBRAISEELERNE
B EERBEHRANERZKRE

BaRe-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BB HRR M

n‘/T\

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z =%

—ANF+—A=F—HUFE

26. LEASE LIABILITIES 26. HEAE
31/12/2019
—E-hEF
+=A
=+-8
HK$000
FET
Lease liabilities payable: ENHEERE:
Within one year —F R 2,430
Within a period of more than one year —FLE
but not more than two year BAERMFERER 4,162
Less: Amount due for settlement within 12 months BB REaRE IETEI}N 218 A A
shown under current liabilities RIEAEE 2 5B (2,430)
Amount due for settlement after 12 months shown TIRIEREBEE IETE"NNI A&
under non-current liabilities REEE 2 4,162
Lease obligations that are denominated in currencies other NEREEERIEEBUINZEE
than the functional currencies of the relevant group entities FHEZHERESIINT
are set out below:
SDG
Fr 0% T
At at 31 December 2019 —E-NF
+-A=+—8 904,196
INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 27. MEMBMRRRPOFAE

27.

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

(a) Current taxation in the consolidated statement (@) REMBRRERPOEHHR
of financial position represents: Hig
2019 2018
—E-NF —T-N\F
HK$’000 HK$000
FHET FET
Provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax ~ AFEHB SR B E
for the year 10,601 1,822
Provisional Profits Tax paid AT E AT (1,253) (1,825)
9,348 (3)
Balance of Profits Tax provision EEBTFENEH
relating to prior years RS ER 1,616 1,619
10,964 1,616
Sino Splendid Holdings Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2019



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e IR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #ZE=F—NF+=HA=+—HIFE

27. INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 27. iR E M BRR R P HFRTED -
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION - &
Continued
(b) Movement of each component of deferred tax (b) EXHIEEFERAEARBHON
liabilities b0
Fair value adjustment on Fair value adjustment on
held for trading investments intangible assets Total
BEREREZAAERE BYEECAAERE &zt
2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018

“8-hE -EI-Nf Z-B-hf _"ET-NE C—B-pE C—E-N\%&
HKS$'000  HKS'000 HK$'000  HKS000  HK$000  HKS'000
T TAT FE7 TAT FET FET

At1 January W—F—A - 603 1,077 2,154 1,077 2,757
Charge to profit or loss for the year st \ERBE# - (603) (1,077) (1,077) (1,077) (1,680)
At 31 December ®+=A=1+-H = = = 1,077 = 1,077
(c) Deferred tax assets not recognised (c) RERZEEHEEE
At the end of the reporting period, the Group RBERR AEEARBTEEL
had unused tax losses arising in Hong Kong of ANENA T IEEE19,392,000/8
HK$19,392,000 (2018: HK$13,139,000) that are T (ZZT—/)\F:13,139,000/%
available for offsetting against future taxable profits ) WA RAREHEEZES
of the companies in which the losses arose. No BZRAZRKERD G M 7
deferred tax assets have been recognised at the end of RRPEA&EE R AR EETRA
reporting dates in respect of the tax losses due to the R s A ROR - B Itk N A B A IR
unpredictability of future profit streams. BRERELERIBEE -
28. SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES 28. BA R e
(@) Share capital (@) A&
Number of shares Share capital
RH#E R A&
HK$'000
TET
Authorised: BE:
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each BREEIBTZEAR
At 1 January 2018, 31 December 2018, R-ZE-N\E—-A—H"
1 January 2019 and 31 December 2019 “E-NFtZA=t—H"
“E-AFE-A-AK
ZE-NF+ZA=1+—H 50,000,000,000 500,000
Issued and fully paid: BRARME:
At 1 January 2018, 31 December 2018, R-Z-\¥—-A—-HR"
1 January 2019 and 31 December 2019 —E-\F+ZA=+—H"
“E-AFE-A-AR
“E-AF+ZA=1+—H 385,820,923 3,858

PEERRRERARLF “E-NFFRH @



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
n‘/-ﬁ 7_|- ﬁ% #ﬁ %% Mj- -LE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 B2 = F— N F+=-H=+—HILFZE

28.SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES — Continued 28. RA K e — &

(b) Movements in components of equity (b) BEIMD 2B B
The reconciliation between the opening and REBGREER 2 S BONEFA]
closing balances of each component of the Group’s &iﬂi B HRE N AR
consolidated equity is set out in the consolidated ~  # HE)R B BN R A E B 4 &= &6
statement of changes in equity. Details of changes DPRFNRFRNEBFIFET
in the Company’s individual components of equity U
between the beginning and the end of the year are set
out below:
Company A2 A]
Capital
Share Capital redemption Retained
premium reserve reserve profits Total
RO EE XA SXEORB REEF @t
HK$000 HK$'000 HKS$000 HK$000 HKS$'000
TET TET TET TET TET
At 1 January 2018 R=2-\E-F—H 72,982 755 11,690 52,489 137,916
Loss and total comprehensive FREER2EMXEE
expenses for the year - - - (3,172) (3,172)
At 31 December 2018 and RZZE-N\$+-A=t+—-H
1 January 2019 k=—F-h&—H—-H 72,982 755 11,690 49,317 134,744
Loss and total comprehensive FREER2ERXEE
expenses for the year - - - 12,928 12,928
At 31 December 2019 RZF-NF+ZA=1—H 72,982 755 11,690 62,245 147,672
¢) Nature and purpose of reserves o REIMERBN
i)  Share premium i) BRG&E
Under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands BERSHESRARE(Z
(2010 Revision as amended from time to time), the T-—FFEIR KRS
share premium and capital reserve of the Company ) ARAREGEERE
may be applied for payment of distributions 2N & 8 AT B E o R SR
or dividends to shareholders of the Company ERETARABKRE (K
(“Shareholders”) provided that immediately ®]) - \ﬁf%lr‘_’\/}f(?i_%/ﬁ
following the date on which the distribution or BEEBH ARAGRREEE
dividend is proposed to be paid, the Company is BREHR iﬁ?'JEﬂZEﬁ’%"

able to pay its debts as they fall due in the ordinary
course of business.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e IR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #ZE=F—NF+=HA=+—HIFE

28. SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES - Continued
¢) Nature and purpose of reserves — Continued

ir)

iii)

iv)

V)

Capital reserves

In 2009, the Company exercised a capital
reduction by reducing its share capital from
HK$1,000,000,000 divided into 250,000,000
shares of HK$4.00 each to HK$2,500,000 divided
into 250,000,000 shares of HK$0.01 each (the
“Capital Reduction”). The effect arising from the
Capital Reduction was transferred to the capital
reserve account and applied for payment of
distributions or dividends to shareholders.

Goodwill reserves

Goodwill reserve represent the goodwill arising on
acquisition of net asset and operation of another
entity for which the acquisition date is before
1 January 2005.

Capital redemption reserves
Capital redemption reserve represents the share
repurchases made by the Company.

Reserves fund

Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations for
foreign investment enterprises (“FIEs”) established
in the People’s Republic of China excluding Hong
Kong (the “PRC”), a certain portion of the FIE's
profits is required to be transferred to reserve
funds which are not distributable. Transfers to
this reserve are made out of the FIE's profits after
taxation calculated in accordance with accounting
principles and financial regulations applicable to
PRC enterprises (“PRC GAAP”) and shall not be
less than 10% of profit after taxation calculated in
accordance with PRC GAAP. No such transfer was
made in either year as there was no such profit
after taxation from the FIEs in either year.

HESRH B R AR

28. RA R fRE— &
¢ REZHMERBEN-E&

i)

iir)

iv)

V)

B E
RZZEZTNLF AR aE#
HEAAEBE1,000,000,000
Bt (5D A250,000,0000%
FR4.00%8 T 2 KHD) R
4 %E2,500,0008 7T (9 A
250,000,0000% & }%0.017%
TTZ D) ([RRASEIR]) o
BAEREEZ Y EERS
BEARFEERY AT HBIED IR
RS TR -

BEHE
BEHEEEABRHA-F
TZRHE-HA—HZAME—
ERFEEREBNPEE
EZERE-

B[] 1
AARE I A D Al E
AR A REE -

g
REBAREPEARKMN
B ([hE] - T~EH/EEE)K
VMZOEARERE ([
WERE]) 2HBRERERK
Bl MR ERE2E T
MEBBETA DK HHE
TRN-EREFET ISR
DREBEARPELCEZS
PERI R BB ARG (T B
eEETER]FFEIIEER
BhXRZBRBEENAE
TEERBREFBECREE
HAFEZBRBRERENZ
10% ° PO EfA] F JE A 3 4 5%
BNEIRE B X 2R RR
A B e PME R F E R GE
THEREE-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2019 B2 = F— N F+=-H=+—HILFZE

28.SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES — Continued 28. RA K e — &

c) Nature and purpose of reserves — Continued ¢ REZHMERBEN-E&
vi) Translation reserves vi) (B #E
The translation reserve comprises all foreign EHREEREMBEREEI
exchange differences arising from the translation XM BRI ELENINE
of the financial statements of foreign operations ERUAREARZEFINE
as well as the effective portion of any foreign BREFEELENIEZE
exchange differences arising from hedges of the net ZEBRED -

investment in these foreign operations.

d) Non-controlling interests d FERER
Share of net
assets of
subsidiaries
DHEMB AR
FRE
HK$’000
THET
At 1 January 2018, 31 December 2018, R-_B-—NF—H—H"
1 January 2019 and at 31 December 2019 —ZT—N\F+=ZA=+—H"
—E-NEFE-A—RBK
—ZT-hFF+-_HA=1+—H 2,029
Note: The non-controlling shareholder of a subsidiary of the et NGB —HMWEB QR IEE
Company hold 10% equity interest. Such subsidiary PRPIR R FFH10% AR S © B
was dormant during the year ended 31 December 2019 E_E-NERIZE-NF
and 2018. T-A=+t—HLEE B
MEARNES -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e IR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #ZE=F—NF+=HA=+—HIFE

29. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 29. A B 2 B B AR R
THE COMPANY
2019 2018
—E-NF —E-)N\F
HK$’000 HK$000
F#ET FET
Non-current assets IREBEE
Investments in subsidiaries RB AR ZIEE 65,675 65,675
Equity investments at FVTPL FRERREARE
SIHE 2 AR E 46,387 45,965
112,062 111,640
Current assets REBEE
Prepayments, deposits and BNFE -Be Rk
other receivables H b & W 518 - =
Amounts due from subsidiaries A =N 23,545 19,661
Cash and bank balances e MIRITE R 19,046 10,899
42,591 30,560
Current liabilities REEE
Other payables and accrued liabilities Hith JE A5 5018 N T B (& 3,123 3,598
Net current assets BRBEE 39,468 26,962
Total assets less current liabilities REERABEE 151,530 138,602
Capital and reserves EXRf#E
Share capital &N 3,858 3,858
Reserves {1 147,672 134,744
Total equity R 151,530 138,602
Approved and authorised for issued by the board of R-_E-_FEF=A=1t—H"KE=F
directors on 31 March 2020. eHERBETRE-
Chow Chi Wa Yang Xingan
AEE BEZ
Director Director
EF EF
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2019 B2 = F— N F+=-H=+—HILFZE

30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND CAPITAL
RISK MANAGEMENT

(a)

(b)

30 B TEAEREARKRER

Categories of financial instruments (@ MBITEE
2019 2018
—E-AF —E—)N\F
HK$7000 HK$’000
FET FET
Financial assets EHMEE
Financial assets measured BEENATEZ
at amortised cost TREE 64,941 53,735
Equity investments at FVTPL BRERREAAEIEZ
RAKZE 51,583 52,984
Financial liabilities SHEes
Liabilities measured at amortised cost IRE#EK AT EZ B & 42,415 32,973

The Group’s major financial instruments include
accounts receivables, other receivables, loan
receivables, equity investments at FVTPL, accounts and
other payables and lease liabilities. Details of these
financial instruments are disclosed in the respective
notes. The risks associated with these financial
instruments and the policies on how to mitigate
these risks are set out below. Management manages
and monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate
measures are implemented on a timely and effective
manner.

Financial risk management objectives and
policies

Management monitors and manages the financial risks
relating to the operations of the Group through their
degree of magnitude of risks. These risks include market
risk (including foreign currency risk, interest rate risk
and other price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk.

@ Sino Splendid Holdings Limited

(b)

AEBEsETBZHHETABRER
BRAK O HARUCGROR - BIE R
BBRBHRBRAABEIEZRA
BRE AR H Ath & FRR
NEHERBE - ZFMBITAZ
HERERNEPRE-B%F
BI7s T EARRE < AR - DA ROR &
ZERRBREINMT &R
BYZERBRETEENMES
BRANE RBR 2T AEITE

EEEP
MERERBEEREREX

EEERBRRNBREREESR
N TR B K SR (B & B AR R RO B 7
Rk ZERBREETSRER (2
5 OMEE R B~ ) R R B B B A (B
RER) FEEEREARBES
K -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e IR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #ZE=F—NF+=HA=+—HIFE

30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND CAPITAL 30. B TAREARARARERE -
RISK MANAGEMENT - Continued e

(b) Financial risk management objectives and (b) BEBEERERBEX—
policies — Continued |
(i) Market risk (i) 5% B

The Group's activities expose it primarily to the
financial risks of changes in foreign currency
exchange rates, interest rates and equity prices.
There has been no change to the Group’s manner
in which it manages and measures the risk.

Foreign currency risk

The Group’s business transaction, assets and
liabilities are denominated in HK$, US$ and SGD
and the functional currency of the Group is HKS$.
Considering the fact that most of the Group’s
transactions are denominated in its functional
currency except for sales denominated in US$, the
Group’s exposure to foreign currency risk arises
from sales denominated in USS$.

Since HK$ is pegged to US$, there is no significant
exposure expected on US$ transactions and
balances whilst the currency peg remains in place.

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined
based on the exposure to a 5% (2018: 5%)
increase and decrease in Hong Kong dollars
against Singapore dollars. 5% is the sensitivity
rate used when reporting foreign currency risk
internally to key management personnel and
represents management’s assessment of the
reasonably possible change in foreign exchange
rates. The sensitivity analysis includes outstanding
amounts of Singapore subsidiary’s Hong Kong
dollars denominated monetary items and adjusts
their translation at the period end for a 5% change
in foreign currency rates. For a 5% strengthening
of Hong Kong dollars against Singapore dollars,
the post-tax loss for the year ended 31 December
2019 would be decreased by HK$2,707,000 (2018:
post-tax loss decreased by HK$2,484,000). For a
5% weakening of the Hong Kong dollars against
Singapore dollars, there would be an equal and
opposite impact on the profit or loss.

HESRH B R AR

AREZEREDTEEY
o188 B 5 5 I B AR B A
B % B 2 B 5 LR - A
EBRA;EAMARZ 5
A 4 2

SMEE L2
AEBEXEBRS BERE
BB 2T R F I T
AHE MARBEZNEER
RET-ERIKHEERSE
TLEHEIN RZHEAKER
HNENEEEHE &
B P g 2 SNEE BB 2R B =
TTAHEHE -

MR E T T H - RIE
HEBBHBRRDERZ
B XL MEHRTEE
FCE KA

NTHRESTERBILE
Fronsg TE R E AR T 5%
—E—N\F:5%)0NERK
EAEEBTE 5% &M EE
B & 8 & 3R K 6 51N & B B
KACHRELER WTREK
EREHINEIEXRSIER B
BE oA B - HERELNE
FEF 0 BT B A B A B T AT
BEEMEBZATFRESE:
K 1A BB 4% 5k SN S BB R 5% K
BEETRERE -METT
HE M T EER5% 0 B &
E_T-NFF+ZA=+—
AIEFE 2 FREEERBRD
2,707,000 T (=ZF — N\
F Wi EER 2,484,000
P& TC) © 407 JT 5 T N3 T
T 5% EHEIBEREER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 B2 = F— N F+=-H=+—HILFZE

30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND CAPITAL 30 B TAREXREREE -

RISK MANAGEMENT - Continued L

(b) Financial risk management objectives and (b) MBEEBREERERBEK—
policies — Continued &
(i) Market risk — Continued (i) TT5ER &

Interest rate risk

The Group has no significant interest-bearing
financial assets and liabilities with a floating
interest rate as at 31 December 2019 and 2018.

Other price risk
The Group is exposed to equity price risk through

its investments in equity securities and funds. The
management manages this exposure by maintaining
a portfolio of investments with different risks and
refunds. The Group’s equity price risk is mainly
concentrated on equity instruments quoted in the
Stock Exchange.

The policies to manage other price risk have
been followed by the Group since prior years
and are considered to be effective. The sensitivity
analyses below have been determined based
on the exposure to price risk at the end of the
reporting period for the Group’s held for trading
investments and equity investments at fair value
through profit or loss. A 5% increase or decrease
is used as it represents management’s assessment
of the possible change in price of equity securities.
If the prices of the listed equity securities held
in the portfolio had been 5% higher/lower, the
post-tax loss for the year ended 31 December 2019
would increase/decrease by HK$2,579,000 (2018:
HK$2,649,000) as a result of the changes in fair
value of listed equity securities. If the prices of
the respective equity securities that are indexed
to equity prices had been 5% higher/lower, the
Group’s profit for the year ended 31 December
2019 would increase/decrease by HK$217,000
(2018: loss for the year would increase/decrease
by HK$293,000) as a result of the changes in fair
value of financial instruments held-for-trading
investments.

@ Sino Splendid Holdings Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e IR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #ZE=F—NF+=HA=+—HIFE

30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND CAPITAL 30 B TAREXARERERE -

RISK MANAGEMENT - Continued &

(b) Financial risk management objectives and (b) BEBEERERBEX—
policies — Continued |
(i) Credit risk (i) 1ZE B

Credit risk refers to the risk that Group’s
counterparties default on their contractual
obligations resulting in a financial losses to
the Group. The Group’s credit risk is primarily
attributable to accounts receivable, loan and
interest receivables, and financial assets at FVTPL.
The Group’s exposure to credit risk arising from
cash and cash equivalents and derivative financial
assets is limited because the counterparties are
large banks have low credit risk.

Accounts receivable

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced
mainly by the individual characteristics of each
customer rather than the industry or country in
which the customers operate. At the end of the
reporting period, 48% (2018: 41%) and 75%
(2018: 63%) of the total accounts receivable was
due from the Group’s largest customer and the five
largest customers respectively.

Individual credit evaluations are performed on all
customers requiring credit over a certain amount.
These evaluations focus on the customer’s past
history of making payments when due and current
ability to pay, and take into account information
specific to the customer as well as pertaining to
the economic environment in which the customer
operates. The Group has a policy such that debtors
with balances that are more than 3 months past
due are requested to settle all outstanding balances
before any further credit is granted. Normally, the
Group does not obtain collateral from customers.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2019 B2 = F— N F+=-H=+—HILFZE

30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND CAPITAL 30 B TAREXREREE -

RISK MANAGEMENT - Continued ]
(b) Financial risk management objectives and (b) HBEBEERERBK—
policies — Continued &

(i) 15 EE R &
EBE R — &
AEFERESMBREE
BIEE95E 5 5 7 kst 8 78 1
EEBR ZE5 A

(ii) Credit risk — Continued
Accounts receivable — Continued
The Group applied the HKFRS 9 simplified
approach to measuring expected credit losses
which uses a lifetime expected credit loss

allowance for all accounts receivable and contract
assets. To measure the expected credit losses,
accounts receivable and contract assets have been
grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics
and the days past due. The following table provides
information about the Group’s exposure to credit
risk and ECLs for accounts receivable and contract
assets as at 31 December 2019 and 2018:

BERUERREHNEERH
EHBEHMEEEFEEEB R
TEERHEERE B
HEEERRSE AKX
BHEUEREANEES
Tl TRERBEBAASR
BR-_F-—hEk=_F—-N
Fr+-A=1t—HEHNE

ERBRAMERERREHE
ENBEHREEERER:

2019 2018
—B-0F —E-N\F
Accounts receivable Accounts receivable
& W B YR
Expected Gross Expected Gross
loss carrying Loss loss carrying Loss
(Note) amount allowance (Note) amount allowance
AUER BHER
(W)  BEEE - BEER (W)  BEEE  FREE
% HK$000 HK$000 % HK$'000 HK$'000
% FET FET % FET FET
Current (not past due) BH(xm8) - - - - - -
0-90 days past due BH0ZE90H 2 123,200 2,464 9 2,520 227
91-180 days past due ME91Z180H 27 981 265 50 3,625 1,812
More 181 days past due WENSTH L 100 9,832 9,832 100 5,000 5,000
134,013 12,561 11,145 7,039
Note: B i

Expected loss rates are based on actual loss experience
over the past 1 year. The historical loss rate are adjusted
to reflect current and forward-looking information
on macroeconomic factors affecting the ability of the
customers to settle the receivables. The Group has
identified factors to be the most relevant factors, and
accordingly adjusts the historical loss rates based on
expected changes in these factors.

@ Sino Splendid Holdings Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e IR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #ZE=F—NF+=HA=+—HIFE

30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND CAPITAL 30 BT AREARAMREE -
RISK MANAGEMENT - Continued =
(b) Financial risk management objectives and b) BEEREERERBE-
policies — Continued |
(i) Credit risk — Continued (i) 1z 525~
Loan and interests receivables EWES &ﬂ
The Group’s credit policy specifies the credit $E.E'Jf.:.,\ﬂlﬁ%ﬁm7ﬁ
approval, review and monitoring processes. The EEM ERLEERRE
board of directors of the Company are responsible ARREZEEEBEER Zf&\
to ensure the credit policies and operation manual BERBREFHESTS
are appropriate to the market need. G
The Group considers all loan receivables as i A& KA EH E BB
doubtful if the repayment of principal and/or HiH @3 @ A - Bl R & B R
interest has been overdue for more than 3 months. RBERKERARARE
X e

The impairment provision is made based on the WEREEIIRE T X ara
ECLs model as detailed below: EHEEBFBEEN ML

PEERRRERARLF —ENEFR @



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
n‘/-ﬁ 7_|- ﬁ% #ﬁ %% Mj- -LE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 B2 = F— N F+=-H=+—HILFZE

30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND CAPITAL 30 BT ARERREEE -
RISK MANAGEMENT - Continued ]
(b) Financial risk management objectives and (b) HBEBEERERBK—
policies — Continued &
(i) Credit risk — Continued (i) 1B/
Loan and interest receivables — Continued ERER—&
An analysis of changes in the gross amount of loan JE W & K i@ BMEHH M
receivables is as follows: I
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
E1RE FIR B EIKE @t

HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000
TEX TET TEX TEX

Gross amounts of loans and RZE-NE-A-HZ

interest receivables as EWERRF LA

at 1 January 2018 10,604 - - 10,604
New loans/financing originated ~ REIEEFN FE 4,398 - - 4,398

Transfer to lifetime expected credit &% E W3 EHERN
loss not credit impaired (Stage 2) 2 HEHEEERE

(E2MEER) (10,604) 10,604 - -
Total transfer between stages Rz REEEsE (10,604) 10,604 - -
At 31 December 2018 RZE-N\E
and at 1 January 2019 +ZA=+-BEK
RZE-hE-HF—H 4,398 10,604 - 15,002
Loans and interests repaid FRERZEFRAE

during the year = = = =
Transfer to 12-month expected ~ BEZ1{EABHEE

credit loss (Stage 1) BB (E1ER) 10,604 (10,604) = -
Total transfer between stages ERE 7 HEEEE 10,604 (10,604) - -

At 31 December 2019 75’\‘_4 hE
TZA=1- 14,502 = = 14,502

@ Sino Splendid Holdings Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2019



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR A

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #ZE=F—NF+=HA=+—HIFE

30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND CAPITAL
RISK MANAGEMENT - Continued

(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies — Continued
(ii) Credit risk — Continued

Loan and interest receivables — Continued

An analysis of changes in the corresponding ECL

3&@&IE&§¢E@§E—
]
b) BEBRREEREREE-
&
(i) 1EEER &
EREH—8
EENEREEEREEE

allowances is as follows: E Bk (I
2019 —Z2-h¥F
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
FIER FoRR FI3ER At
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT B B BT
As at 1 January 2019 RZZE-NE—H—H 4,381 10,094 - 14,475
New loans/financing originated REHEED B4 - - - 3
Transfer to 12-month expected ERENEAES
credit loss (Stage 1) FEER (F1RR) 10,094 (10,094) = .
Loans and interests repaid FREEZEZNFIE
during the year (500) - = (500)
Movements due to changes in HEERREZE 5 BM
credit risk ) 260 - B 260
At 31 December 2019 R-ZE-NE
+=-A=+-8 14,235 = = 14,235
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
n‘/-ﬁ 7_|- ﬁ% #ﬁ %% Mj- -LE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 B2 = F— N F+=-H=+—HILFZE

30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND CAPITAL 30, BT ARELAERERE -
RISK MANAGEMENT - Continued &

(b) Financial risk management objectives and (b) HBEBEERERBK—
policies — Continued &
(i) Credit risk — Continued (i) 1ZEE L

Loan and interest receivables — Continued ERER-E

2018 —\%F
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
FIER FIREE FIER @t
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT
Restated opening balance under R ZZT—/\F—A—H
HKFRS 9 as at 1 January 2018 BEBEEH BRE LR
FIRETHGER 8,667 - - 8,667
New loans/financing originated ~ REHEE K /Eﬂ? 4,000 - - 4,000
Transfer to 12-month expected BREZNEARSEE
credit loss (Stage 1) BiE(Z1ER) - - . —
Transfer to lifetime expected credit E&Z W 3EEEREN
loss not credit impaired (Stage 2) 2 HEHEE
B (F2RE) (8,658) 8,667 - —
Total transfer between stages BRR HEBREE (8,658) 8,667 - -
Movements due to changes in R{EERREE5 2
credit risk 2 (17) 10 - (7)
At 31 December 2018 RZB-N\%¥
+=ZA=+-H 3,983 8,667 - 12,650
The credit risk on bank and cash balances is RITRRESEBRZEER
limited because the counterparties are banks with BR-EHFHIRSE fE
high credit-ratings. |2 RAT»

The Group does not provide any guarantees which
would expose the Group to credit risk.

(iii) Liquidity risk

Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk
management rests with the board of directors,
which has built an appropriate liquidity risk
management framework for the management of the
Group’s short, medium and long-term funding and
liquidity management requirements. The Group
manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate
bank balances and cash and continuously
monitoring forecast and actual cash flows.

@ Sino Splendid Holdings Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e IR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #ZE=F—NF+=HA=+—HIFE

30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND CAPITAL 30, MR TAREXEARERE -
RISK MANAGEMENT - Continued ]
(b) Financial risk management objectives and (b) BEBEERERBEX—
policies — Continued |
(iii) Liquidity risk — Continued (iii) T B) & % B gt — B
The following table analyses the Group’s remaining TROMAEEREEZER
contractual maturity for its financial liabilities ABALEMAEERBE
provided internally to the key management ctRABRZzeRAEENBRELH
personnel for the purpose of managing liquidity B HIBR IR IR AE
risk. The table has been drawn up based on the B 2RNR&F B
undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities AECRABZCAMRE
based on the earliest date on which the Group can eREMmRE -2RBEZ
be required to pay. The maturity dates for financial A DREEENXEBE
liabilities are based on the agreed repayment dates. iE e
Within Total Total
90 days or  undiscounted carrying
on demand cash flows amount

90H " AUBRBES
RIBRER FREHE FREAE

HK$’000 HK$000 HK$'000
FHET FET FHET
2019 —E-NF
Accounts payable JE 1~ AR X 2,244 2,244 2,244
Other payables and accrued H th & 1~ ;RIE K
liabilities EErBaE 40,171 40,171 40,171
42,415 42,415 42,415
2018 —E-N\F
Accounts payable JE 1 BR 3K 2,498 2,498 2,498
Other payables and accrued H & RIE K
liabilities EEtAE 40,072 40,072 40,072
42,570 42,570 42,570
(c) Financial instruments not measured at fair () kFRQPABEFEZHKEIAR
value
The fair value of other financial assets and financial HtheMEERTREBGBEZAA
liabilities are determined in accordance with generally BETRET S EBRANZ EEBIE
accepted pricing models based on discounted cash flow X RERRERESTERE °
analysis.
Management considers that the carrying amounts of ERERRNGEE M B KL%
financial assets and financial liabilities not measured ZEBAREHEZEREER
at fair value recorded in the consolidated financial THEBEREEREAAREME
statements approximate their fair values. e

PEERRRERARLF “E-NFFRH @



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
n‘/-ﬁ 7_|- ﬁ% #ﬁ %% Mj- -LE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 B2 = F— N F+=-H=+—HILFZE

30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND CAPITAL 30 B TAREXREREE -

RISK MANAGEMENT - Continued i
(c) Financial instruments not measured at fair (c) FBRAABEEZHET

value — Continued B

Based on the lowest level input that is significant to ERHAERBAAEBEEN

the fair value measurement in its entirely, the fair value REREE AABEERAS AR

hierarchy has the following levels: AT A :

Level 1  Fair value measurements are those derived £—M KENHREESBERE
from quoted prices (unadjusted) in active R & BB T 3% B P IR
market for identical assets or liabilities. (;Kuﬂ%k)fﬁél Ral:0)

/L@uJF% °

Level 2 Fair value measurements are those derived F& Bat AFE—RHRE
from inputs other than quoted prices INBEEERBET
included within Level 1 that are observable HE(HE®R)EE
for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as E(aEiaeL)
prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices). %qﬂﬁm)\gmﬁ &

/LTEE+E °

Level 3 Fair value measurements are those derived E=1 e E I IEIR & A &
from valuation techniques that include inputs RIS E (E X
for the asset or liability that are not based %zjm)\%( BYNEE
on observable market data (unobservable SEEGARESNS
inputs). BEFEBENAAE

B
Assets measured at fair value AN B EZ EE
The financial assets measured at fair value in the R+t-—A=+—HBHREREHBK

MRABRDARBEFEZEMEE
DOERM T RAESFR

consolidated statement of financial position as at
31 December are grouped into the fair value hierarchy

as follows:
Fair value measurements at the end of the reportlnﬁ period using
RAATESRESHANRAGEE
Quoted price in active markets ~ Significant other observable  Significant unobservable inputs
Description Fair value at for identical assets (Level 1) inputs (Level 2) (Level 3)
REEERERTEH LS L DN EZTTREGA
#f RAE BE(%-8) BB (5-8) BE(5=8)
2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018
ZE-hAE ZE-\f  ZB-Af  —B-)\f ZE-hE “2-\§ ZB-Af T )\%
HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEn TET FEx TET FEx TET FEn TET
Held-for-trading BIEEERE
investments 5,196 7,019 5,196 7,019 - - - -
Private equity fund T EREES
investments "E 46,387 45,965 - - 46,387 45,965 - -

AEERMBAABEFEERRE
HIREHTE-

BE_ZT-hhEFR_ZT—N\F

All of the Group’s fair value measurement were
remeasured at the end of the reporting period.

There were no transfers of financial instruments

between levels in the hierarchy for the years ended TZRA=+—BLEEE MBI
31 December 2019 and 2018. ARERZEALEEE-
@ Sino Splendid Holdings Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2019



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e IR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #ZE=F—NF+=HA=+—HIFE

30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND CAPITAL
RISK MANAGEMENT - Continued

(c) Financial instruments not measured at fair

30.@&IE&§$E@%‘E—
IE

() FRDAEFEZHMBT

value - Continued

Assets measured at fair value — Continued
Valuation techniques and inputs used in level 1 fair

value measurement

Held-for-trading investments were listed equity
securities in Hong Kong, for which the fair value was
determined with reference to quoted bid prices in
active market at the end of the reporting period.

Valuation techniques and quantitative information using

significant other observable inputs in level 2 fair value

measurement

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to stakeholders. As the
Group is in a cash-rich position, the Directors do not
intend to rely on external financing. The Group had no
bank borrowings as at 31 December 2019 and 2018.
The Group’s overall strategy remains unchanged from
the prior years.

HESRH B R AR

HE-&
BAREGFNELEE—%&
E-RRrEFEFERAMNGEES
N A\ BUE
FIEEEREASNBE LHHK
AFESH ERARBDERERAR
RERMISNREEE -

E_RRrEFEFERAMNBER
MERBEMEET B EE AR
BHNEEEHR

Description Fair value at 31 December Valuation technique
15 Rt=ZA=+—BZARE i B £ 1l
2019 2018
—E-NF —E-N\F
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FET

Private equity fund investments 46,387 45,965 Net asset value (Note b)

LEREESRE BEFE (#ZD)

Note: (a) There was no change in valuation technique Hit: @ BEZZE-AFRZZE
in respect of private equity fund investments —N\F+ZHA=+—H
(“P-Funds”) for the years ended 31 December WFE BEBEFLSERE
2019 and 2018. EeRE(LAEES])

B il (B B 1 4 48 (F fa) 2
&) o
(b)  The Group has determined that the reported net by AEBEEETLEES
asset value of the P-Funds were approximate to WEZ2WMEEFEHEA
its fair value at the end of the reporting period R|EBHRO 2R EMN
because the investment portfolio for each of the A REASALERES
P-Funds are public traded securities listed on MR EHEE REBINE
overseas stock exchanges (i.e. Shenzhen Stock H X 5 (BNRYIE &
Exchange and Tokyo Stock Exchange), which RGMERRBEFR S
accounted for over 90% of the net assets value for i) EmH 2R SE
each of the P-Funds as at 31 December 2019 and HF HALHELEEESR
2018. ZE-AERZF-N
F+=-ZA=+—RHEE
SF(EBEI0% ©
(d) Capital risk management d) EXERER

AEFBEREER UERAE
BzERBENTERLE RS
BREBREZES HRAKHE
BEERBEE BEFITHEBRG
IABE-R_FT-—NFRZF
—NFE+A=+—8B F5£E
FEEMRTEE AREZE
EREETFESR-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2019 B2 = F— N F+=-H=+—HILFZE

30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND CAPITAL

RISK MANAGEMENT - Continued

(d) Capital risk management — Continued
Accordingly, the capital structure of the Group consists
only of equity attributable to owners of the Group,
comprising issued share capital, reserves and retained
profits.

The Directors review the capital structure of the Group
on a timely basis. As part of this review, the Directors
consider the cost of capital and the risks associated
with capital.

31.SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

The Company adopted a share option scheme (“2013
Share Option Scheme”) on 31 December 2013, which
was approved by the Shareholders at the EGM held on the
same date. The 2013 Share Option Scheme will expire on
31 December 2023.

The purpose of the 2013 Share Option Scheme is to enable
the Group to grant share options to eligible participants as
incentives or rewards for their contribution to the growth of
the Group and to provide the Group with a more flexible
means to reward, remunerate, compensate and/or provide
benefits to the eligible participants.

According the 2013 Share Option Scheme, the Board
may grant share options to eligible participants as defined
in the 2013 Share Option Scheme and the Board has
its sole discretion considers eligible for the 2013 Share
Option Scheme on the basis of their contribution to the
development and growth of the Group.

The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon
the exercise of all share options to be granted under the
2013 Share Option Scheme and any other share option
scheme(s) of the Company must not exceed 10% of the
issued share capital of the Company on the date of approval
and adoption of the 2013 Share Option Scheme provided
that the Company may at any time seek approval from
the Shareholders to refresh the limit to 10% of the shares
in issue as at the date of approval by the Shareholders in
general meeting where such limit is refreshed. Share options
previously granted under any share option schemes of the
Company (including those outstanding, cancelled, lapsed
in accordance with such schemes or exercised options) will
not be counted for the purpose of calculating the limit as
refreshed.

@ Sino Splendid Holdings Limited

30 B TEAEREARKRERE -

|

d) EXEREE-&
At AEBZEARBIESR
ZIKE@%E/\FE%\ T RE
BT - B RRE RN o

EETMRNALEE L EAR
BetEART 2 —H5 HEE
B A AR A R B A 8B 2 A
B o

3SLURDARERZNRRS

ARARERZBE—Z=F+=RA=+—
BHEMm—EEREFE (2T —=
FERETS]) ZBEREFIER
Rl ERITHBRRERIAS EEBR
Mo — T FBREAIEN —Z
—E=EFE+ZRA=+—HEMm-

TE=FEREAEEERARE
A”@F‘J/\é{%/ﬂ%?“ﬁﬁﬁﬁx%ﬁ%

SHAREE /L RIEL T RO BE
Bi”ﬁﬁbjﬂizﬁﬁl EH T N EEE Hh iR
B -BHS WER IAEERSH
EHRHEF A

RE-_ZF-=-FERESE EF8
ARaER2EE (EER-_FT—=
FHEEREAIREBERELESS
AREFESHASENERLIERD
BERERENBEERSFSLEA _T—=
FRBETSNER-

ARE - T =FBREFEILAR
AR E ] B (R A At IR B P A
%%%%ﬁﬁﬁT%ﬁM?ﬁ%@

BEENHERRKA-_T—=F
%k%?ﬂ BARRE HITRAH
10% » WS 2 ) 7] B B = SRR 1L/
DA 5% LIRS 3T /R AE R £ PR RURHE
EEHHRRASEBEETROD
10% ° S5 BIAR BB AR 12 B fa] B A dE &t
ARENERE (BRERIEMEMTS
WATE BEE KRAETER
BE)RNFAELEHRLRESIEE
BHEA-

ANNUAL REPORT 2019



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e IR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #ZE=F—NF+=HA=+—HIFE

31.SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS -

Continued

The total number of shares issued and may fall to be issued
upon exercise of the share options granted under the
2013 Share Option Scheme and any of other share option
scheme(s) of the Company (including exercised, cancelled
and outstanding options) to each eligible participant in
any 12-month period up to and including the date of grant
shall not exceed 1% of the shares in issue as at the date
of grant unless such grant has been duly approved by
ordinary resolution of the Shareholders in general meeting
at which the relevant eligible participant and his associates
abstained from voting. Share options granted to substantial
Shareholders or Independent Non-executive Directors or
any of their respective associates in any 12-month period
in excess of 0.1% of the Company’s issued share capital on
the date of grant and with a value in excess of HK$5 million
must be approved in advance by the Shareholders.

Options granted must be taken up within 7 days from the
date of the offer upon payment of a nominal consideration
of HK$1 in total by the grantee. The exercise period of the
share options granted is determinable by the Board. There is
no general requirement on the minimum period for which
option must be held before an option can be exercised. All
option shares must be exercised within 10 years from the
date of grant of options.

The exercise price is determined by the Board and will
not be less than the higher of (i) the closing price of the
Company’s shares on the date of grant, (ii) the average
closing price of the shares for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of grant; and the (iii) the
nominal value of the Company’s share.

The share options do not confer rights on the holders to
dividends or to vote at shareholders” meetings. During the
year ended 31 December 2018 and 2017, no option was
granted and exercised under 2013 Share Option Scheme.

HESRH B R AR
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32.

33.

34.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2019 B2 = F— N F+=-H=+—HILFZE

OPERATING LEASES COMMITMENTS

The Group leases certain of its offices under non-cancellable
operating lease arrangements with lease terms ranging from
one to five years. As at 31 December 2018, the total future
minimum lease payment under non-cancellable operating
leases are payable as follows:

—FR

Within one year

In the second to the fifth year inclusive

F_FEFHLF (BREEMT)

32. REHERIE

AEBERBIAIBHEEEHERSHE
EETHAZ HENF—ZEZRF-
RZZE—-NF+A=+—H0 RE
PAREREHERSN 2 RERKE
He@smEmT:

2018
—E—NF
HK$’000
FET

2,737
6,098

8,835

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

Commitment in respect of investment in

private equity funds

33. EAREIE

2019 2018
—g-nE  —FN\#F
HK$’000 HK$000
FET FET

RERLERARES 2 &R

2,928 3,631

RETIREMENT BENEFITS PLANS

Retirement benefits are paid by an overseas and Hong
Kong subsidiary to its employees who contribute to certain
retirement benefits plans managed by relevant independent
trustees/government authorities. The retirement benefits paid
by the overseas and Hong Kong subsidiary are based on
a certain percentage of its employees’ relevant income in
accordance with the relevant regulations and are charged
to profit or loss as incurred. The subsidiaries discharges
its required contribution obligations upon payment of the
retirement benefits to its designated trustees/government
authorities.

During the year, the Group made retirement benefits scheme
contributions totaling HK$1,733,000 (2018: HK$2,816,000)
(Note 10). At the end of the reporting period, there are no
forfeited contributions.

@ Sino Splendid Holdings Limited
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BN E BB R B A RIKAEN T
HEB®R BFHEEBANHETHEMMA
HRAAFARBEBBLZTEAE
& REIREZRKBEFETEA &I
KB B AR N2 RIKEN IR
BEBAIIRERE 2HBARANRE
EE LA EERELERREBRERA
kR M B AR R RIKEHNTH
EEXEA/BIERR NEET
HEBRERKEME
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e IR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #ZE=F—NF+=HA=+—HIFE

35. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 3. BELRS
The remuneration of key management consisting of directors FRAFT2ERE(BREEFE %
and one employee (2018: directors and one employee) BE(ZE-N\F - EEk—%E
during the year was as follows: B))zMemT:
2019 2018
—E-NF —E-)N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET THETT
Salaries and short-term benefits e K2 EIAE A 3,720 3,520
The remuneration of key management is determined by the TEEBEEZMEe T HFMEE SR
remuneration committee having regard to the performance BEARREEDSBEETE -
of individuals and market trends.
36. COMPARATIVE FIGURES 36. AT LL BB F
The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 at 1 January REBR_ZT-NF—A—HERE
2019 using the modified retrospective approach. Under this BUEW R AXRNEBM GRS
approach, comparative information is not restated. Further ERHE16H -REW T A TEET
details of the change in accounting policies are disclosed in HEER S BRESH & —FFF
note 2. B BB EE2 -
37.EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING DATE 37. BEHREBR
Since January 2020, the outbreak of Novel Coronavirus BE-Z-ZF — AR FHATNRRK
(“COVID-19”) has impact on the global business FS(ZZ2-ABRBEER])NEE
environment. Up to the date of this announcement, EEHEREmERBENTFE-BE
COVID-19 has not resulted in material impact to the ARERH —ZE-NABRASHEIL
Group. Pending the development and spread of COVID-19 BHAEEERNBREYE - NARSE
subsequent to the date of this announcement, further BHE -_ZT-NABRESHINDEZ
changes in economic conditions for the Group arising EREBERC AEBEAEELNE
thereof may have impact on the financial results of the RBRAAEDRTERNEBNT B E
Group, the extent of which could not be estimated as at the oM EREEEINARNSHBIE
date of this announcement. The Group will keep continuous e AEERHERI_T—AEN
attention on the situation of the COVID-19 and react RERNEDS BEREHENEEER
actively to its impact on the financial position and operating MBRAREEXBEENTE I
results of the Group. Other than that, no significant event INRZEBE-RFT+A=+—RH#%
which needs to be disclosed has taken place after 31 NEEAREEH HBIEBELEATR
December 2019 and up to the date of this announcement. BZEAREIR-
38. APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 38. #it JE B 3% &
The financial statements were approved and authorised for MBBRRER_ZE_EF=A=1+—
issue by the board of Directors on 31 March 2020. BREESSHE RXER -
PEERRRERBRLT —E-NEFRH @



FINANCIAL SUMMARY

LUpLY

RESULTS E
Year ended 31 December
BE+-A=t+—-BHiLEE
2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
—E-hAEFE ZE-N\F ZE—+F ZT—RF ZT-HF
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FHET FHET FHET
Revenue BER 107,365 94,517 93,121 100,185 79,184
(Loss)/profit for the year [EIEARERE
attributable to: (BB) /RF:
Owners of the Company EN/NGIESZEDN (2,665) (28,625) (179,888) 115,200 11,213
Non-controlling interests RS - - = = (15)
(2,665) (28,625) (179,888) 115,200 11,198
ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND NON-CONTROLLING EE - BERFERER
INTERESTS
At 31 December
R+=A=+-H
2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
—E-hEFE ZE-N\F ZE—+F ZT-RF T-HF
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FAET FHET FHET
Assets EE 237,474 223,070 254,861 444,271 296,880
Liabilities afE (61,719) (45,263) (42,873) (69,667) (35,457)
Non-controlling interests FEITE AR (2,029) (2,029) (2,029) (2,029) (2,029)
173,726 175,778 209,959 372,575 259,394
@ Sino Splendid Holdings Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2019
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